CITY OF
WEST CHICAGO

WHERE HISTORY & PROGRESS MEET

Due to the Governor’s Executive Order and the Restore Illinois Approach, no more
than 10 people are permitted in the City Council Chambers for public meetings.

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MONDAY, JUNE 15, 2020 - 7:00 P.M.
475 MAIN STREET, WEST CHICAGO, ILLINOIS

REVISED AGENDA!
1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

3. Invocation
4, Roll Call and Establishment of a Quorum
S Public Participation

The opportunity to speak to the City Council is provided for those who have a
question or comment on an agenda item or a City of West Chicago issue. The City
Council appreciates hearing from our residents and your thoughts and questions
are valued. The City Council strives to make the best decisions for the City and

public input is very helpful.

Respect for the duties of the City Council and for the democratic process will be
adhered to — in this regard, civility and a sense of decorum will be strictly followed.
All speakers must address their comments to the Mayor. Comments that are
personally condescending will not be permitted. Speakers shall be courteous and
should not make statements that are personally disrespectful to members of the City
Council or City staff,

Please use the podium in the center aisle. Please announce your name and address
(if acceptable) before commencing — all public comments are limited to three (3)
minutes and each citizen will be permitted to speak only once. It is the City
Council’s policy not to engage in dialogue during Public Comment. Any questions
raised will be addressed by City staff or an elected official outside of the City
Council meeting,.

During the COVID-19 Pandemic, those wishing to attend public meetings of the City
Council are welcome to do so at City Hall. You may attend in person to listen to the
audio of the meeting, or via teleconference from home or another location on the
Zoom app. Downloading Zoom from zoom.us will provide the audio link to the

1 Ordinance No. 20-0-0002 was moved to Reports by Committee. Resclution No.
20-R-0029 was added unde ﬁ usiness a% 11.B. .

ain Slrcct (630} 2'93 2200 Ruben Pineda
MAYOR

West Chicago, lllinois F (630) 293-3028

60185 | www.westchicago.org
|

Nancy M. Smith Michael L. Guttman
CITY CLERK CITY ADMINISTRATOR



City Council Meeting
June 15, 2020
Page 2 of 3

meeting. Anyone wishing to provide comment on a topic or an agenda item, may
address the City Council by 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. You may do so either by
an online form on the City’s website, email to the Deputy City Clerk at
aadm@westchicago.org or voicemail message at (630) 293-2205 x135. Your comment
to the City Council will be read during the Public Participation portion of the agenda.

A. Public Hearing: Pre-Annexation Agreement — Trillium Farms (Pulte)
6. City Council Meeting Minutes of June 1, 2020

7 Corporate Disbursement Report
- June 15, 2020 ($599,077.59)

8. Consent Agenda
e  Development Committee:
A. Ordinance No. 20-0-0010 - An Ordinance Amending the Code of

Ordinances of the City of West Chicago — Appendix A, Article VII of the
Zoning Code Relating to Indoor Recreation and Amusement.

B. Resolution No. 20-R-0026 — A Resolution Approving the Final Plat of
Trillium Farm.

® Items Not Sent to Committee:

C. Resolution No. 20-R-0027 — A Resolution of the City of West Chicago,
DuPage County, Illinois, Authorizing the Sale of Surplus Municipally
Owned Real Estate — 244 W, Blair Street, West Chicago, Illinois.

D. Ordinance No. 20-0-0011 — An Ordinance Granting a Variance from the
DuPage County Countywide Stormwater and Floodplain Ordinance for
the West Chicago Park District at Reed-Keppler Park — 129 West National
Street.

9. Reports by Committees

A. Ordinance No. 20-0-0002 — An Ordinance Approving and Amendment to
the Preliminary and Final Planned Unit Development for Lakeshore
Recycling Systems, LLC — 1655 Powis Road.

10. Unfinished Business



City Council Meeting
June 15, 2020
Page 3 of 3

11.

12.

13.

14.

New Business

A. Resolution No. 20-R-0028 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Enter Into a
Certain Pre-Annexation Agreement — Pulte Home Company, LLC - 28W541
Roosevelt Road and 28W700 Purnell Road.

B. Resolution No. 20-R-0029 — A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a
Public Utility Easement Agreement for 29W066 Gary’s Mill Road and 29W080
Gary’s Mill Road.

Correspondence and Announcements

Upcoming Meetings

June 16, 2020 Plan Commission/ZBA (cancelled)
June 22, 2020 Public Affairs Committee

June 23, 2020 Historical Preservation Commission
June 25, 2020 Finance Committee (cancelled)

July 2, 2020 Infrastructure Committee

Mayor’s Comments

Executive Session

A. Land Acquisition — 5 ILCS 120/2 (C) (5) (6)

B. Litigation — 5 ILCS 120/2 (C) (11)

C. Personnel Matters — 5 ILCS 120/2 (C) (1)

D. Review of Official Record — 5 ILCS 120/2 (C) (21)

Items to be Referred for Final Action from Executive Session.

Adjournment




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO - 475 Main Street
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
Regular Meeting
June 1, 2020

The City Council meeting of June 1, 2020, was held partly remote and partly in person due to
the coronavirus pandemic.

1. Call to Order. Mayor Ruben Pineda (in person) called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.
2. Pledge of Allegiance. Alderman Chassee led all in the pledge of allegiance.

3. Invocation. The City Clerk gave the invocation.

4. Roll Call and Establishment of a Quorum.

Roll call found Aldermen Leri J. Chassee, Heather Brown, Alton Hallett, Michael D. Ferguson,
Sandy Dimas, Melissa Birch-Ferguson, Christopher Swiatek, Matthew Garling, Jeanne Short,
Rebecca Stout, John E. Jakabesin, and Noreen Ligino-Kubinski present. All Aldermen in
attendance were present remotely except Alderman Matthew Garling. Aldermen James E.
Beifuss, Jr. and Jayme Sheahan were absent. The Mayor announced a quorum.

Also in attendance in person were City Administrator Michael Guttman, Chief of Police Mike
Uplegger, Deputy Chief of Police Chris Shackelford, and Public Works Director Rob Flatter.

Attending remotely were City Clerk Nancy M. Smith, City Attorney Patrick Bond, Community
Development Director Tom Dabareiner, and Communications and Marketing Coordinator
Rosemary Mackey.

5. Public Participation. There was no public participation.

6. City Council Meeting Minutes of May 18, 2020. Alderman Ferguson made a motion,
seconded by Alderman Jakabesin, to approve the minutes of May 18, 2020, with no changes.
Voting Aye: Aldermen Chassee, Brown, Ferguson, Hallett, Dimas, Birch-Fergusen, Garling,
Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabcsin, and Ligino-Kubinski. Voting Nay: 0. Motion carried.

7. Corporate Disbursement Report. Alderman Dimas made a motion, seconded by Alderman
Ferguson, to approve the June 1, 2020, Corporate Disbursement Report in the amount of
$503,295.49). Voting Aye: Aldermen Chassee, Brown, Ferguson, Hallett, Dimas, Birch-
Ferguson, Garling, Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabcsin, and Ligino-Kubinski. Voting Nay: 0.
Motion carried.

8. Consent Agenda,

* Public Affairs Committee: Alderman Chassee read and explained the following
items:

A. Approve - The West Chicago Community High School Homecoming Parade
Scheduled for Friday, October 9, 2020)

B. Approve - The Cultural Arts Commission’s Proposal for a Haiku Yard Sign Public Art
Project (for an amount not to exceed $5,000.00)

C. Resolution 20-R-0021 - A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Master
Services and Purchasing Agreement with Axon Enterprises, Inc. for the Purchase and Use of
Axon Products and Services (for an amount not to exceed $177,342.00)

Alderman Chassee made a motion, seconded by Alderman Birch-Ferguson, to approve
Resolution 20-R-0021. Voting Aye: Aldermen Chassee, Brown, Ferguson, Hallett, Dimas,
Birch-Ferguson, Garling, Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabesin, and Ligino-Kubinski. Voting Nay: 0.
Motion carried.

* |ltems Not Sent to Committee

D. Resolution 20-R-0024 - A Resolution of the City of West Chicago, DuPage County,
llinois, Authorizing the Sale of Surplus Municipally Owned Real Estate - 513 Church Street,
West Chicago, lllinois

J E. Resolution 20-R-0025 - A Resolution Supplementing the Mayor's Emergency
Proclamation

Alderman Chassee made a motion, seconded by Alderman Brown, to approve Resolution 20-
R-0024 and Resolution 20-R-0025. Voting Aye: Aldermen Chassee, Brown, Ferguson, Hallett,
Dimas, Birch-Ferguson, Garling, Swiatek, Short, Stout, Jakabcsin, and Ligino-Kubinski. Voting
Nay: 0. Motion carried.



City of Wast Chicago

June 1,2020 :

Page 2

9. Reports by Committee: None
10. Unfinished Business: None
11. New Business: None

12. Correspondence and Announcements

Upcominag Meetings

June 2, 2020 Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals
June 4, 2020 Infrastructure Committee

June 8, 2020 Development Committee

13. Mayor’s Comments: The Mayor spoke of the Covid-19 pandemic, and said the numbers
are looking good in DuPage County, but West Chicago's are still climbing. Information needs to
get out to the entire population to take safety measures. There are over 700 cases and 9 dead.
We opened some of the businesses on Friday with outdoor dining at Hawthorne's and El Coco
Local and a few other places. There was a brief uneventful Black Lives Matter demonstration
where people stayed in their cars and honked homs at the Palice Department.

The Mayor said everyone must be careful as we want to make sure our residents are safe.

The Mayor thanked the Police Department and Fire Department for going out to help other
communities. The Mayor spoke of activities in the other DuPage communities. He has been
invited to a prayer gathering at Comerstone Park and will be attending that event where people
will be wearing masks and will be practicing social distancing.

14. Executive Session. There was no executive session.
15. Items to be Referred for Final Action from Executive Session. Not applicable.

16. Adjournment. At7:14 pm. Alderman Chassee made a motion, seconded by Alderman
Stout, to adjourn. Motion was carried by voice vote.

Respectfully submitted,
City Clerk



CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CORPORATE DISBURSEMENT REPORT
June 15, 2020

OPERATING ACCOUNT

FUNDED BY:

GENERAL FUND

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

SEWER FUND

WATER FUND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

DOWNTOWN TIF SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND

MISCELLANEQOUS DEPOSITS

COMMUTER PARKING FUND

APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON:

DATE:

SIGNATURE:

599,077.59

191,450.46
2,570.74
221,837.01
65,672.64
107,166.74
6,480.00
3,000.00

900.00
























PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
DATE: 06/11/20 CITY OF WEST CHICAGO
TIME: 14:23:33 CHECK REGISTER - DISBURSEMENT FUND

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.batch='G392’ and transact.ck_date='20200615 00:00:00.000"
ACCOUNTING PERIOD: 6/20

FUND - 40 - OPERATING FUND

CASH ACCT CHECK NO ISSUE DT —————mmmmmmm VENDOR-———= —=—————— DEPT-DIV = =  ———ee DESCRIPTION——————
105100 87819 06/15/20 13109 WATER RESOURCES, INC 063447 INVOICE #34036 DATED 0
105100 87821 06/15/20 1680 WEST CHICAGO FIRE PROTEC 01 LAND CASH RECEIVED
105100 B7822 06/15/20 3519 WEST CHICAGO LIBRARY DIS 0100 20.8% OF PPRT RECEIVED
105100 B7823 06/15/20 546 WEST SIDE TRACTOR SALES 053443 INVOICE #N92462 DATED
105100 va7820 06/15/20 15061 WCWWA 053443 INVOICE # 052020 WC

TOTAL CASH ACCOUNT
TOTAL FUND

TOTAL REPORT

SALES TAX
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPAZ21

AMOUNT

1,685,
23,690.
23,214.

266.

217,628,

599,077

592,077

599,077.

00
66
17
14

67

<59

53

L3

8



PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
DATE: 06/11/20
TIME: 14:04:15

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

SELECTION CRITERIA: payable.due date=’'20200615 00:00:00.000'

PAYMENT TYPE: ALL

FUND - 01 - GENERAL FUND

DEPT-DIV ACCOUNT

01 226500 MISCELLANEOUS LI 1680

01 226900 SUSPENSE 12268
TOTAL GENERAL FUND

0100 311000 PERS PROF REPL T 3519

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES

010110 4012 CORP COUNSEL-SAL 7994

010110 4100 LEGAL FEES 7994

010110 4650 MISCELLANEQUS CO 5861

TOTAL CITY COUNCIL-OPERATIONS

010207 4225 OTHER CONTRACTUA 15137
010207 4225 OTHER CONTRACTUA 3273

010207 4225 OTHER CONTRACTUA 5353

010207 4234 PARATRANSIT SERV 15112
010207 4234 PARATRANSIT SERV 15112
010207 4719 LOC INTEREST 15256
TOTAL CITY ADMIN-SPECIAL FPROJ

010208 4202 TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207

010208 4225 OTHER CONTRACTUA 4322

TOTAL CITY ADMIN-MARKET/COMM

010210 4202 TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207

TOTAL CITY ADMIN-ADMIN

010219 4600 COMPUTER/OFFICE 4354

010219 4626 CHEMICALS 14295
010219 4626 CHEMICALS 14295
010219 4626 CHEMICALS 14295
010219 4806 OTHER CAPITAL OU 15255
TOTAL CITY ADMIN - COVID19

010501 . 4108 EMPLOYMENT EXAMS 4089

010501 4110 TRAINING & TUITI 13673
010501 4202 TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207

010501 4212 ADVERTISING 4836

010501 4680 SPECIAL EVENTS 13673

TOTAL ADMIN SERVICES-HR

RUN DATE 06/11/2020 TIME 14:04:15

WEST CHICAGO FIRE PRO

CALL ONE

WEST CHICAGO LIBRARY

BOND, DICKSON & ASSOC
BOND, DICKSON & ASSOC
HINCKLEY SPRING WATER

APTIM ENVIRONMENTALG&

WASTE MANAGEMENT

PATRICK ENGINEERING,

PACE SUBURBAN BUS
PACE SUBURBAN BUS
FIFTH THIRD BANK

VERIZON WIRELESS
US POSTMASTER

VERIZON WIRELESS

A & G GLASS, INC
MACCARB, INC
MACCARB, INC
MACCARB, INC
INSULGARD

TYLER MEDICAL SERVICE
AMERICAN RED CROSS -

VERIZON WIRELESS

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL LE
AMERICAN RED CROSS -

CASH REQUIREMENTS BILL LIST

00094088-01

00094066-01

00094036-01
00094036-01
00094034-01

00094032-01
00094054-01
00094065-01
00094050-01
00094050-02
00094085-01

00054087-02

00093980-02
00094020-01
00094020-02
00094020-03
00093867-01

00094010-01
00092892-01

000924012-01
00092892-02

PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

INVOICE

JAN-JUNE 20 G392
1210244-1125G392

JUNE 2020 G392

MAY 2020 G392
MAY 2020 G392
2575377 0521G392

490727 G392
4005902-2011G392
21653.008 G392
575191 G392
575214 G392
2010195675 G392

585742141-00G392
POSTAGE G392

585742141-00G392

645742 G3sz2
209243 G392
210504 G392
208270 G3s2
3694894 G392
417675 G392

29004569 G392
585742141-00G38%2
254 G392
29004569 G392

BATCH

co0oO0O [=] [=R=l=lel] (=]} oo (=] [=Nal-ReleNe] {=] oo

(=]

PAGE NUMBER:
ACCTPAY1
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

SALES TAX

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00

1

6/20

AMOUNT

23690.
.96

56666

80357,

23214

23214

250,
8l42.
155.

8548.

1380.
448,

675

86
424
125

3138.

46.
120.

166.

46
46
232

4792
3600

8487

145.
.25
46.
35,
.20

2072

9398

3297

66

62

.17

.17

00
70
68

38

00
37

.00
.45
.00
97

79

87
00

87

.87
.87

.42
.50
.00
-562.

425.

50
0o

.42

00

87
00

32



PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
DATE: 06/11/20

TIME: 14:

04:15

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

SELECTION CRITERIA: payable.due date='20200615 00:00:00.000’
PAYMENT TYPE: ALL

FUND - 01 - GENERAL FUND

DEPT-DIV

010503
010503
010503
010503

ACCOUNT

4105
4109
4225
4600

TOTAL ADMIN SERVICES-IT

010510

4202

TOTAL ADMIN SERVICES-ADMIN

010613
010613
010613
010613
010613
010613
010613
010613
010613
0106132
010613
010613
010613
010613
010613
010613
010613
010613
010613

4100
4100
4100
4112
4202
4202
4211
4216
4225
4225
4502
4600
4601
4615
4615
4618
4650
4650
4650

TOTAL POLICE-OPERATIONS

010614

4225

TOTAL POLICE-ESDA

010910

4100

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS-ADMIN

010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921
010921

4202
4203
4216
4219
4225
4225
4225
4225

TITLE - ==VENDOR—————— e
CONSULTANTS 14400 7 LAYER SOLUTIONS, IN
NETWORK CHARGES 13257 COMCAST CAELE
OTHER CONTRACTUA 12060 CURRENT TECHNOLOGIES
COMPUTER/OFFICE 14400 7 LAYER SOLUTIONS, IN
TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS
LEGAL FEES 15072 TOSCAS LAW GROUP
LEGAL FEES 8248 MARQUARDT & BELMONTE
LEGAL FEES B248 MARQUARDT & BELMONTE
MEMBERSHIPS/DUES 6898 I-PAC
TELEPHONE & ALAR 2298 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICE
TELEPHONE & ALAR 4207 VERIZON WIRELESS
PRINTING & BINDI 3600 PF PETTIBONE & COMPAN
GROUNDS MAINTENA 12131 CLASSIC LANDSCAPE, LT
OTHER CONTRACTUA 10042 LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA
OTHER CONTRACTUA 2027 TRANS UNION CORPORATI
COPIER FEES 14784 BRADEN BUSINESS SYSTE
COMPUTER/OFFICE 12617 ACCURATE OFFICE SUPPL
FIELD EQUIPMENT 15257 ACCESS TOOLS
UNIFORMS/SAFETY 492 RAY O'HERRON, INC.
UNIFORMS/SAFETY 492 RAY O'HERRON, INC.
AMMUNITION/FIREA 12103 FOX LABS INTERNATIONA
MISCELLANEOUS CO 14829 RAPID TRANSPORT TOWIN
MISCELLANEOUS CO 14838 SJK OF WEST CHICAGO,
MISCELLANECUS CO 6601 MENARDS
OTHER CONTRACTUA 14924 FULTON SIREN SERVICES
LEGAL FEES 12712 BARNES & THORNBURG, L
TELEPHONE & ALAR 12709 SPRINT
HEATING GAS 250 NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS
GROUNDS MAINTENA 12131 CLASSIC LANDSCAPE, LT
CONTRACT JANITOR 9719 CRYSTAL MAINTENANCE S
OTHER CONTRACTUA 12380 CINTAS CORPORATICN
OTHER CONTRACTUA 12380 CINTAS CORPORATION
OTHER CONTRACTUA 12380 CINTAS CORPORATION
OTHER CONTRACTUA 12380 CINTAS CORPORATION

RUN DATE 06/11/2020 TIME 14:04:15

CASH REQUIREMENTS BILL LIST

00094090-01

00094092-01
00094091-01

00094011-01
00094072-01
00024072-02
00094073-01

00094074-01
00094017-01
00094014-01
00094070-01
00094069-01
00094071-01
00093918-01
00094015-01
00094067-01
00094016-01
00094068-01

00094013-01

00094035-01

00094017-01
00093224-01
00093082-02
00093082-03
00093082-04
00093082-05

PENTAMATION - FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

INVOICE BATCH
4798 G392
877120038038G392
723817 G392
4800 G392

585742141-00G352

MAY 2020 G392
10602 G392
10603 G392
2020-2021 G392
100383907 G392
585742141-00G392
178728 G392
136167 G392
1088361-2020G392
05000340 G392
643250 G392
513307 G392
452754 G392
2030392-IN G392
2030723-IN G392
00028135 G392
2837 G392
029 G392
MAY 2020 G392
1748 G392
2353100 G392
539996026 G39z
04739367748 G392
136167 G392
26697 G392
450950669 G392
4050950659 G392
4050950631 G392
4050950641 G392

oocoo

o o

[==R=l-R=lofolelalelelelelNoNolelela] (=]

(=]

[=]

CoOCOoO0o0O OO0

PAGE NUMBER :
ACCTPAY1
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:

SALES TARX

.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00
.00

6/20

AMOUNT

885.
.40
571
148.

298

1903

46.
46.

150.
445.
1279.
100.
132.
1271.
1193
250.
381.
100.
.00
334.
156.
62.
150.
914.
256.
132.
18.

45

7373,
3110.

3110.

1638

1638.

25,
158.
140.

3082.

13
L1

00

06
T4

.20

B7
87

00
50
80
00
77
78
BO
00
25
oo

89
95
98
00
00
00
00
89

61
45

45

.50

50

14
84
00
o8

.43
.81
17.
.48

80

































CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 5.

Amendments to Preliminary and Final PUDs
1655 Powis Road FILE NUMBER:

Lakeshore Recycling Systems
COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020

Ordinance No. 20-0-0002 COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: June 15, 2020

STAFF REVIEW: Tom Dabareiner, AICP SIGNATURE %‘
) ——

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Michael Guttman SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

Lakeshore Recycling Systems proposes to amend the Preliminary and Final Planned Unit Develop-
ment (PUD). The amendments would accommodate the construction of two separate additions to the
existing building, including a 22,530 square foot addition and a 4,480 square foot addition. Approval
would also allow expansion of an existing outdoor storage area.

Copies of the plans are attached. Staff recommends approval subject to the condition that the plans
are incorporated as part of the approval and that bird deterrent wire is installed over the detention
pond (plans also attached). The bird deterrent wire, not in the original plan set, was requested by the
DuPage Airport Authority. The DAA is satisfied with the project given that change.

Members of the Planning Commission/ZBA voted unanimously (4-0) in favor of the amendment to the
PUDs at their meeting held March 3, 2020.

ACTION PROPOSED:

Consideration of the Amendments to the Preliminary and Final PUD.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

Development Committee members voted 4-2 in favor of the amendment to the Preliminary and Final
PUD Ordinance.

ATTACHMENTS:
Ordinance
Site Plan, Elevations




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 5.6.

Zoning Code Text Amendment
Indoor Recreation and Amusement FILE NUMBER:

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: June 8, 2020

Ordinance No. 20-O-0010
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: June 15, 2020

STAFF REVIEW: Tom Dabareiner, AICP SIGNATURE /(%?\R

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Michael Guttman SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

Kids Empire USA, LLC (Kids Empire), an indoor children’s activity play facility, is petitioning to amend
the text of the West Chicago Zoning Code to create and define the use of “Indoor Recreation and
Amusement” and to permit the use in the B-3 Regional Shopping District. Kids Empire is proposing to
locate in the Mosaic Shopping Center at the northeast corner of Neltnor Boulevard (lllinois Route 59)
and North Avenue (lllinois Route 64), in approximately 15,000 square feet of the former Hobby Lobby
space. The use of an indoor activity play facility is not permitted in any district in the City. Further-
more, the use of an indoor activity play facility does not fit within the definition of any existing use cat-
egory in the B-3 District. As such, Kids Empire is proposing an amendment that would allow them to

locate in this shopping center space.

Staff has surveyed surrounding communities on this type of use and found that many communities
allow “Indoor Recreation and Amusement” as a permitted use in business districts that are similar to
West Chicago's B-3 District. Indoor Recreation and Amusement includes a multitude of indoor recrea
tion other than just activity play areas. These include sports facilities, swimming pools, ice or roller-
skating rinks, bowling alleys, tennis, handball and other court games, sports clubs, indoor golf, paint-
ball, billiards, foosball, table tennis, shuffleboard, pinball machines, and video games arcades.

Staff is of the opinion that the use of Indoor Recreation and Amusement is compatible with establish-
ments typically found in shopping centers such as Mosaic Crossing. Furthermore, this use is recom-
mended within the North Avenue/Route 59 market study that was prepared for the City by Valerie S.
Kretchmer Associates in 2017 as an alternative to typical retail uses, which have become difficult to

attract.

At its June 2, 2020 meeting, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals (PC/ZBA) conducted a
public hearing to consider the proposed text amendment. Members voted unanimously (5-0) in favor
of recommending the Text Amendment.

ACTION PROPOSED:

Consideration of the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment creating the Indoor Recreation
and Amusement use.




COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

Members of the Planning Commission/ZBA met Monday, June 8, 2020, and voted unanimously in fa-
vor of recommending the Text Amendment to add Indoor Recreation and Amusement as a permitted
use in the B-3 District.

Attachments:
Draft Ordinance
PC Report




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 5.C.

Final Plat of Subdivision
Trillium Farms Subdivision FILE NUMBER:
Pulte Home Company LLC

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: June 8, 2020

Resolution No. 20-R-0026
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: June 15, 2020

STAFF REVIEW: Tom Dabareiner, AICP SIGNATURE M

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Michael Guttman SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

Pulte Home Company, LLC is the contract purchaser of the former Planter's Palette nursery. Pulte is
proposing to develop the property as a planned unit development for an eighty-four (84) unit single-
family residential subdivision in unincorporated DuPage County. The property is located within 1.5
miles of the corporate limits of the City of West Chicago and the Final Plat of Subdivision is therefore
subject to review and approval by the City as well. The City approved the Preliminary Plat with a devi-
ation on October 21, 2019. DuPage County approved the Preliminary Plat, as well as the conditional
use permit for the development, on February 25, 2020. DuPage County approved the Final Plat of
Subdivision on March 20, 2020.

The petitioner is proposing a senior-oriented residential development that includes the dedication of
new rights-of-way for three (3) minor streets and five (5) outlots for open space, stormwater detention,
and utility crossings. The Final Plat includes the previously approved deviation from the Subdivision
Code to allow a minimum radius of curvature on a minor street centerline to be as little as ninety (90)
feet in lieu of the minimum required 250 feet.

At its June 2, 2020 meeting, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals (PC/ZBA) conducted a
public hearing to consider the proposed text amendment. Members voted unanimously in favor (5-0)

of recommending the Final Plat.

ACTION PROPOSED:

Consideration of the proposed Final Plat.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

Members of the Planning Commission/ZBA met Monday, June 8, 2020, and voted unanimously (6-0)
in favor of recommending the Final Plat for Trillium Farms.

Attachments:
Draft Ordinance
PC Report




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: ¥ D,

Resolution No. 20-R-0027 — Sale of 244 W. Blair Street
FILE NUMBER:

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: N/A
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: June 15, 2020

STAFF REVIEW: SIGNATURE
APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: SIGNATURE
ITEM SUMMARY:

On August 6, 2018, the City Council approved the sale of nine vacant City-owned properties. Attached is
a Purchase and Sale Agreement for 244 W. Blair Street for $21,000.00.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 20-R-0027.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

This item did not go to Committee because it met the requirements of the sale criteria approved by the
City Council in 2018.




RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-0027

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WEST CHICAGO, DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS
AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SURPLUS MUNICIPALLY OWNED REAL ESTATE
244 W. BLAIR STREET, WEST CHICAGO, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, the City of West Chicago is the owner of a certain vacant real property
identified by the common address of 244 W. Blair Street, in the City of West Chicago, Illinois,
designated by the Permanent Index Numbers 04-09-425-001 and -002 (hereinafter referred to as the
“Real Property™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2018-R-0069, the Corporate Authorities of the City
determined that it is no longer necessary, appropriate, or in the best interest of the City of West
Chicago that it retain title to the Real Property; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-76-4.1, the corporate
authorities authorized the sale of the surplus Real Property, and directed the City Administrator to
publish notice of the proposed sale based upon a written certified appraisal for the Real Property; and

WHEREAS, the City Administrator did so advertise the Real Property for sale, and through
the assistance of a licensed real estate broker, has recently received an offer to purchase the Real
Property from Benigno Gomez, 719 Lincoln Avenue, West Chicago, Illinois; and

WHEREAS, the offered purchase price is at the sale price the Corporate Authorities hoped to
achieve, and it is determined to be a fair and reasonable offer price given the current market
conditions, and staff recommends that it be accepted so that the Real Property can be returned to the
tax rolls as a privately held parcel.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Chicago,
Illinois, in regular session assembled:

Section 1. That the recitals set forth above are incorporated herein in their entirety.

Section 2. That the Real Property designated herein be conveyed, pursuant to proper Quit
Claim to Benigno Gomez, for the amount of Twenty-One Thousand and 00/100 Dollars
(521,000.00), pursuant to the terms of the Purchase and Sale Agreement attached hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

Section 3. That City Staff and the City Attorney be directed to take all other reasonable
and necessary steps to sell the Real Property in compliance with this Resolution and Exhibit A.

Section 4. That all ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof in conflict with the
provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.



SECTION 5: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption,
approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

PASSED this 15" day of June, 2020.

Alderman J. Beifuss Alderman L. Chassee
Alderman J. Sheahan Alderman H. Brown
Alderman A. Hallett Alderman M. Ferguson
Alderman M. Birch-Ferguson Alderman S. Dimas
Alderman C. Swiatek Alderman M. Garling

Alderman R. Stout Alderman J. Short
Alderman N. Ligino-Kubinski Alderman J. Jakabcsin
APPROVED as to form:

City Attorney

APPROVED this 15" day of June, 2020.

Mayor Ruben Pineda

ATTEST:

Nancy M. Smith, City Clerk

PUBLISHED: June 16, 2020



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
244 W. Blair Street
West Chicago, Illinois

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 15th day of June, 2020, by and between the City of
West Chicago, an Illinois Municipal Corporation (“Seller™) and Benigno Gomez (“Buyer”).

RECITALS:

A. Seller is the owner of a certain parcel of vacant land (“Property”), bearing the
common address 244 W, Blair Street, West Chicago, Illinois designated by P.1.N. 04-
09-425-001 and -002.

B. Séller has duly adopted a Resolution declaring the Property surplus, and has directed
its sale in accordance with the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-76-4.1.

C. Buyer submitted its offer to acquire the Property from Seller, which Seller has
accepted on the terms stated herein.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and for other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency are hereby acknowledged, Seller and Buyer
agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
PURCHASE AND SALE

1.0I.  Agreement to Buy and Sell. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
upon approval of the Seller’s City Council, Seller will sell to Buyer, and Buyer will purchase from
Seller, good and marketable title to the Property subject to the Permitted Exceptions which may
appear on the Title for said Property.

1.02. Purchase Price. The purchase price (“Purchase Price”) for the Property is $21,000.00.
Buyer will deposit $500.00 in earnest money with the Seller’s Broker which shall a credit toward
the Purchase Price. 1fthis Agreement is declared null and void, or terminated, Eamest Money shall

be disbursed to Buyer.

1.03. Payment Terms. This is a cash sale. The sale of the Property is not contingent upon
any financing. The Purchase Price will be payable at Closing (as hereinafter defined), plus or minus
prorations provided for under this Agreement, and less other credits to which Buyer is entitled under
the terms of this Agreement, in U.S. funds, by cashier's check or wire transfer of immediately
available funds.



ARTICLE 11
ATTORNEY REVIEW

2.01. Attorney Review. Within five (5) Business Days after Date of Acceptance, the
attorneys for the respective Parties, by Notice, may:

a) Approve this Agreement;

b) Disapprove this Agreement, which disapproval shall not be based solely upon the
Purchase Price; or

c) Propose modifications except for the Purchase Price. If within ten (10) Business
Days after the Date of Acceptance written agreement is not reached by the Parties with respect to
resolution of the proposed modifications, then either Party may terminate this Agreement by service
of Notice, whereupon this Agreement shall be null and void.

ARTICLE III
PRE-CLOSING MATTERS

3.01. Title Commitment. Within a reasonable time upon acceptance of this Agreement,
Seller will deliver to Buyer, a commitment for an owner's title insurance policy (“Title
Commitment”) issued by a licensed Title Company (the “Title Company™) in the amount of the
Purchase Price, covering title to the Property on or after the date of this Agreement, showing title in
the intended grantor, subject only to the general exceptions contained in the policy, the Permitted
Exceptions and title exceptions pertaining to liens or encumbrances of a definite or ascertainable
amount which may be removed by the payment of money at Closing and which Seller will so
remove or cause to be removed at Closing by using funds Buyer will pay upon delivery of the deed.

3.02. Survey. Buyer shall provide a survey, to be paid for by Seller, of the Property. The
Survey shall show no encroachments onto the Property from any adjacent property, no
encroachments by or from the Property onto any adjacent property and no violation of or
encroachments upon any recorded building lines, restrictions or easements affecting the Property.

3.03. Title Defects. If either the Title Commitment or the Survey disclose any
encroachment or violation or any exceptions to title or other than an exception described in Section
3.01 of this Agreement (an “Unpermitted Exception™), Seller shall have ten (10) days from the date
of delivery thereof to have the Title Company issue its endorsement insuring against damage caused
by such encroachments, violations or Unpermitted Exceptions, and provide evidence thereof to
Buyer. 1f Seller fails to have the same insured against within said 10-day period, Buyer may elect,
on or before the Closing, to terminate this Agreement or accept the Property subject to such
encroachments, violations and Unpermitted Exceptions.



ARTICLE IV
APPORTIONMENT OF COSTS

4.01. Real Estate Taxes. No real estate taxes are due and owing on the Property. Buyer
will assume all real estate taxes as of the date of acquisition.

4.02. Title: Recording Costs. Buyer and Seller shall pay their usual and customary fees for

e e e S N Oy

title and recording costs.

ARTICLE V
CLOSING

5.01. Closing Date and Location, Seller and Buyer will use their best efforts to close this
transaction on or before June 30, 2020 (the “Closing Date”), subject, however, to satisfaction of the
conditions set forth in this Agreement, at the offices of the Title Company, or at such other time as is
mutually acceptable to Seller and Buyer. In this Agreement, the term “Closing” refers to Seller’s
conveyance of title to the Property to Buyer.

5.02. Seller's Closing Documents. At Closing, the Seller will deposit with the Buyer the
following documents:

(a) A certified copy of the Seller’s Resolution authorizing the sale of the Property.

(b) A recordable Quit Claim deed, in a form reasonably acceptable to Buyer's counsel
and the Title Company, conveying good and marketable title to Buyer in fee simple,
free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, except the Permitted Exceptions.

(c) An ALTA Owner's Title Insurance Policy (“Title Policy™) issued by the Title
Company in the form customarily used by the Title Company for property similar to
the Property, in the amount of the Purchase Price, insuring that Buyer or Buyer's
assignee has marketable, good, insurable and indefeasible fee simple title to the
Property, subject only to the general exceptions of the Policy, the Permitted
Exceptions, and any other exceptions Buyer has elected to accept.

(d)  Executed ALTA Statement.
(e) Executed real estate transfer tax declarations,

() Such other documents as reasonably may be required to consummate the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement.

5.03. Buyer's Closing Documents. At Closing, in addition to the Purchase Price, Buyer
will deposit with the Seller, the following documents:

3



(a) Executed ALTA Statement.

(b)  Such other documents as reasonably may be required to consummate the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement.

ARTICLE V1
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

6.01. Seller's Representations and Warranties. To induce Buyer to enter into this
Agreement, Seller makes the following representations and warranties (all of which representations
and warranties will be deemed to have been made again at the time of the Closing, and all of which
will survive the Closing):

(a) Seller is a municipal corporation, duly organized, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Illinois, with full power and authority to enter into and carry
out terms and provisions of this Agreement. The execution and performance of this Agreement and
the terms and provisions hereof by Seller are not inconsistent with, and do not result in the breach of
any terms of any agreement or instrument to which Seller is a party or by which Seller may be
bound.

(b)  The Property is zoned R5 Single Family.

(c) There is not an unconfirmed pending special assessment affecting the Property by any
association or governmental entity payable by Buyer after the date of Closing.

(d)  The Property is not located within a special assessment area or special service area.
ARTICLE V11
POSSESSION

7.01  Seller shall tender possession of the Property to Buyer as of the date of Closing.

ARTICLE VIl
BROKERS

8.01 Brokers. The Seller has retained the services of a Broker, whose fee shall be paid out
of the proceeds of the Closing pursuant to the agreement between Seller and Broker.



ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

9.01. Fees and Expenses. All costs, fees and expenses, including reasonable attorneys'
fees, and court costs, incurred by a non-defaulting party as a result of the default of the other party
will be paid by the defaulting party.

9.02. Notices. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement will be
in writing and will be deemed to have been given when sent by telefacsimile to the telefacsimile
number provided below for the intended recipient of such notice, or when delivered personally oron
the date deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage pre-paid, return
receipt requested, and addressed as follows:

Ifto Seller:  City of West Chicago
475 Main Street
West Chicago, IL 60185
Attn: City Administrator

With copy to: Mary E. Dickson
Bond, Dickson & Conway
400 S. Knoll Street, Unit C
Wheaton, Illinois, 60187

Ifto Buyer:  Benigno Gomez
719 Lincoln Avenue
West Chicago, IL 60185

With copy to: Elsie Dorta Dean
Elsie( dortadeanlaw.com

or to such other address as a party may from time to time specify in writing to the other parties in
accordance with the terms hereof.

9.03. Amendment. This Agreement cannot be amended or terminated except by written
instrument signed by all the parties hereto.

9.04. Waiver. No [ailure by Seller or Buyer to insist upon the strict performance of any
covenant, duty, agreement or condition of this Agreement, or to exercise any right or remedy upon a
breach thereof, will constitute as waiver thereof. Any party hereto, by notice to the other parties,
may, but will be under no obligation to, waive any of its rights or any condition to its obligations
hereunder, or any duty, obligation or covenant of the other parties hereto. No waiver will affect or
alter any other covenant, agreement, lerms or conditions of this Agreement, all of which shall
continuc in full force and effect.

9.05 Captions. The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference only and

5



in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of this Agreement.

9.06 Governing Law. This Agreement has been entered into in the State of Illinois and
will be interpreted under and governed by the laws of the State of Illinois.

9.07. Assignment. Seller may not assign this Agreement, or any of Seller's rights
hereunder, nor may Buyer delegate its duties, without first obtaining Buyer’s written consent, which
Buyer may withhold in its absolute discretion.

9.08. Binding Effect, Without limiting the provisions of Section 9.07, this Agreement will
bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

9.09. Prior Agreements. This Agreement (including the exhibits attached hereto) is the
entire agreement between Seller and Buyer and supersedes in its entirety all prior agreements and
understandings relating to the Property.

9.10. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of the performance of each of the
obligations of Seller and Buyer.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties have signed this Agreement on the date first above
written.

SELLER:

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

By:




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:

AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 5.E.
Stormwater and Flood Plain Ordinance Variance
West Chicago Park District FILE NUMBER:
Reed Kepler Park
129 West National Street CONMMITTEE AGENDA DATE: N/A
Ordinance No. 2020-0-0011 COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: June 15, 2020

%/
STAFF REVIEW: Tom Dabareiner, AICP SIGNATURE /;?ﬁj -—
£z /‘\.._../'

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Michael Guttman SIGNATURE

The West Chicago Park District has submitted an application for a variance from the DuPage County County-
wide Stormwater and Flood Plain Ordinance as part of a project to install solar panels at Reed Kepler Park lo-
cated at 129 West National Street. West Chicago is a partial-waiver stormwater community and has adopted
the DuPage County Countywide Stormwater and Flood Plain Ordinance. The installation of the solar panels
requires stormwater detention facilities be provided to address site runoff. The property is a former remediation
site for thorium contamination and was also the site of a former sports shooting range and therefore has lead
contamination in the soil as well. As part of the remediation agreement for this site, the site has a restriction on
it with respect to removing soils from the site. Providing detention storage on site for the solar panel installation
would require the removal of a significant amount of soil, which is not advisable or prudent.

For this reason, the Park District is seeking a variance for the project. The Park District, with their engineer,
has prepared a hydrology report demonstrating that the proposed runoff as a result from the solar panel instal-
lation will not exceed the existing release rates for stormwater. The detention not being provided will be ad-
dressed as well through payment into the Detention Variance Fee program (Fee-in-lieu) in accordance with the
DuPage County Countywide Stormwater and Flood Plain Ordinance.

The variance application has been reviewed and found to be acceptable to the DuPage County Stormwater
Management Committee on March 27, 2020. The Committee has recommended that the City Council approve
the proposed variance. Furthermore, the City's engineer has no issues with the proposed variance. The con-
taminated soil and remediation agreements represent a unique challenge for the Park District not found in oth-
er projects or on other properties. The development will not impact surrounding properties either from a storm
water or flood plain perspective.

The DuPage County Countywide Stormwater and Flood Plain Ordinance requires a public hearing occur with
the City Council prior to approval of the petition. A notice was published in the May 30, 2020 edition of the Daily
Herald in accordance with XVI of the DuPage County Countywide Stormwater and Flood Plain Ordinance.

ACTION PROPOSED:
Consideration of the requested variance from the DuPage County Countywide Stormwater and Flood
Plain Ordinance upon completion of conducting a public hearing for the request.

Attachments:
Draft Ordinance
Location Map
Drainage Exhibit




ORDINANCE NO. 20-0-0011

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIANCE FROM
THE DUPAGE COUNTY COUNTYWIDE
STORMWATER AND FLOODPLAIN ORDINANCE
FOR THE WEST CHICAGO PARK DISTRICT AT REED KEPLER PARK
129 WEST NATIONAL STREET

WHEREAS, on or about March 26, 2020, the West Chicago Park District, (the
“APPLICANT™), filed an application for a variance from the DuPage County Countywide
Stormwater and Flood Plain Ordinance (the “ORDINANCE"), with respect to the property legally
described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “SUBJECT REALTY™); and

WHEREAS, as a partial-waiver community, the City of West Chicago has adopted the
ORDINANCE according to Article III, Section 14-48 of the City of West Chicago Code of
Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT is a governmental entity that owns and maintains the
SUBJECT REALTY on behalf of the public; and

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT desires to install solar panels (the “PROJECT”) at Reed
Kepler Park at the northwest corner of National Street and Yale Street; and

WHEREAS, the ORDINANCE requires stormwater detention facilities with certain site
improvements such as those proposed as part of the PROJECT on the SUBJECT REALTY; and

WHEREAS, the SUBJECT REALTY is a former remediation site for thorium
contamination and, in addition, the area for the PROJECT is the site of a former sports shorting
range, which has enabled the existing soils to contain a significant amount of lead; and

WHEREAS, as part of the remediation agreement for the SUBJECT REALTY, a restriction
exists with respect to removing soils from the SUBJECT REALTY; and,

WHEREAS, providing detention storage onsite for the PROJECT would require the
removal of a significant amount of soil, for which there exists no area within the SUBJECT
REALTY for re-spreading and excavating contaminated soil is not advisable or prudent; and,

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT is therefore requesting a variance to not provide stormwater
detention facilities associated with the PROJECT on the SUBJECT REALTY; and.

WHEREAS, the difference between the detention required by the ORDINANCE and the
detention being provided in order to meet the existing release rate will be mitigated by payment in
the Detention Variance Fee program in accordance with Section 15-97 of the ORDINANCE; and

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT has obtained approval from the DuPage County Stormwater
Committee on March 27, 2020 for the proposed variance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of West

Ordinance 20-0-0011
Page 1 of 3



Chicago, DuPage County, Illinois, in regular session assembled, as follows:

Section 1. A variance from Article IX, Section 15-72 of the DuPage County Countywide
Stormwater and Flood Plain Ordinance is hereby granted for the SUBJECT REALTY to not require
stormwater site runoff storage on the SUBJECT REALTY.

Section 2. That all ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with the
provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

Section 3. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

PASSED this day of , 2020.
Alderman Beifuss Alderman Chassee
Alderman Sheehan Alderman Brown
Alderman Hallett Alderman Ferguson
Alderman Birch-Ferguson Alderman Dimas
Alderman Swiatek Alderman Garling
Alderman Stout Alderman Short
Alderman Ligino-Kubinksi Alderman Jakabcsin
APPROVED as to form:

City Attorney
APPROVED THIS day of , 2020.

Mayor Ruben Pineda

ATTEST:

City Clerk Nancy M. Smith

Ordinance 20-0-0011
Page 2 of 3



PUBLISHED:

EXHIBIT “A”

(Insert Legal Description)

Ordinance 20-0-0011
Page 3 of 3



.
h Manhard
CONSULTING

Project Location Map

129 W National Street, West Chicago IL, 60185

PROJECT
LOCATION

PPPPPPP




=i
i L,IH .

= Frlﬂ G OF VST ORIEARO, L. rcogu'!'!:!m rd‘?_

PROPOSED DRAINAGE CONDITIONS EXHIBIT Mﬁ‘?m




CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: A

Pre-Annexation Agreement
Pulte Home Company, LLC FILE NUMBER:
28W541 Roosevelt Road and 28W700 Purnell Road

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE:

Resolution No. 20-R-0028
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: June 15, 2020

STAFF REVIEW: Tom Dabareiner, AICP SIGNATURE A
Sl AR

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Michael Guttman SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

Pulte Home Company, LLC (Pulte), contract purchaser of the former Planter's Palette nursery located
in unincorporated DuPage County, is proposing to develop an eighty-four (84) unit single-family resi-
dential subdivision known as Trillium Farm. The development will be senior-oriented and will include
the dedication of new rights-of-way for three (3) minor streets and five (5) outlots for open space,
stormwater detention, and utility crossings. The residential units will be a mix of 2, 3, and 4 bedrooms.
The property is located outside the corporate limits of any municipality and will be developed in unin-
corporated DuPage County.

As part of the project, Pulte is requesting connection to the City's existing sanitary sewer and water
mains on the north side of Gary's Mill Road, west of Purnell Road. Because the property is not contig-
uous to the City, Pulte is proposing to enter into a pre-annexation agreement with the City for these
connections to occur. The pre-annexation agreement requires the property be annexed to the City
once contiguity is achieved but no sooner than either four (4) years after the approval date of the pre-
annexation agreement, or, the sale of the last residential home, whichever occurs first. The nearest
property located within the corporate limits of the City is a small portion of the Blackwell Forest Pre-
serve located on the south side of Gary's Mill Road, west of Purnell Road.

Prior to annexation, the residents of the development will pay twice the incorporated rate for both
sewer and water for a period of four years. Pulte is requesting a waiver of certain connection fees
normally required for the development of each lot including recapture fees, administrative charges,
sewer connection charges, water plant capacity charges, and water connection fees. Regular sewer
treatment plant capacity charges and water meter charges cannot be waived. Although the property is
to be developed in unincorporated DuPage County and all building permits will be issued through the
County, the City will issue permits for, and inspect, the extension of the City's sanitary sewer and wa-
ter mains. All required fees for these permits and inspections will be collected by the City. Pulte is also
negotiating revised impact fee schedules with Grade School District 33 and High School District 94.

Prior to consideration of the pre-annexation agreement, the City Council is required to conduct a pub-
lic hearing in accordance with State Statute, which is scheduled to occur at the June 15, 2020 City
Council meeting. A public notice of the hearing was published in the May 30, 2020 edition of the Daily

Herald.




ACTION PROPOSED:

Consideration of the proposed Pre-Annexation Agreement upon completion of the Public Hearing.

Attachments:
Draft Resolution Approving the Pre-Annexation Agreement
Pre-Annexation Agreement




RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R-0028

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A CERTAIN
PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT - PULTE HOME COMPANY, LLC
28W541 ROOSEVELT ROAD AND 28W700 PURNELL ROAD

WHEREAS, Pulte Home Company, LLC (the “DEVELOPER?”) is the contract purchaser of
the property legally described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (the
“SUBJECT REALTY™); and

WHEREAS, Chicago Title Land Trust Company as successor Trustee to LaSalle Bank
National Association, as Successor Trustee to American National Bank and Trust Company of
Chicago, as Trustee under a Trust Agreement dated February 25, 1987 and known as Trust No.
1029 (the “OWNER?”) is the owner of SUBJECT REALTY; and

WHEREAS, the SUBJECT REALTY is a tract of land approximately 34.97 acres in area,
and is generally located at the southeast corner of Gary’s Mill and Purnell Roads; and

WHEREAS, the SUBJECT REALTY is not within the corporate limits of any municipality
and is not contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of West Chicago; and

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER desires to enter in a certain proposed Pre-Annexation
Agreement in substantially the form of Agreement in Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and made a part
hereof; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Chicago conducted a Public Hearing as to
the Pre-Annexation Agreement on June 15, 2020, as required by law, all appropriate notices having
been given; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Chicago have considered the terms and
provisions of the proposed Pre-annexation Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West
Chicago, DuPage County, Illinois, in regular session assembled, as follows:

Section 1. That the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute that certain Pre-
Annexation Agreement heretofore incorporated herein as Exhibit “B”, by and on behalf of the City
of West Chicago.

Section 2. That all resolutions and ordinances, or parts thereof, in conflict with the
provisions of this Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

Resolution 2020-R-0028
Page 1 of 5



Section 3. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption
and approval as provided by law.

PASSED this day of , 2020.

AYES:
NAYES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Mayor Ruben Pineda
ATTEST:

Nancy M. Smith, City Clerk

Resolution 2020-R-0028
Page 2 of 5



EXHIBIT “A”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE NORTH 370 FEET OF THE WEST 379.30 FEET OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED
PROPERTY: THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF
SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION AFORESAID; THENCE WEST ALONG
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 663.8 FEET FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 512.87 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL WITH THE
NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION, 669.2 FEET; THENCE NORTH 512.87 FEET
TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE EAST 669.2 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXCEPTING
THEREFROM THE NORTH 78.92 FEET THEREOF.

P.ILN. 04-23-101-002

THE SOUTH 229.73 FEET OF THE NORTH 599.73 FEET OF THE WEST 379.3 FEET OF
THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
THE NORTHWEST Y4 OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST % OF SECTION 23 AFORESAID; THENCE
WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 663.8 FEET FOR A
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 512.87 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL
WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 669.2 FEET; THENCE NORTH
512.87 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE EAST 669.2
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; AND THAT PART OF LOT 1, EXCEPT THAT
PART THEREOF LYING SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 EXTENDED
WESTERLY TO THE WEST LINE OF LOT 1 OF WILLIAM A. MOYER'S ASSESSMENT
PLAT OF PART OF SECTION 23, AFORESAID, RECORDED MAY 10, 1951 AS
DOCUMENT 622994, ALL IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

P.LN. 04-23-101-017

THAT PART OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED BY BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER
OF SAID SECTION 23 AND RUNNING THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 19
SECONDS EAST ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 23, 1334.75 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 0 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST ALONG AN OLD FENCE LINE
AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF W. A. MOYER'S ASSESSMENT PLAT, 1747.56 FEET
TO THE CENTER LINE OF PURNELL ROAD; THENCE NORTH 43 DEGREES 09
MINUTES WEST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 1964.24 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF

Resolution 2020-R-0028
Page 3 of 5



SAID SECTION 23; THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 13 SECONDS WEST
ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 276.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN DUPAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE NORTH 78.92 FEET OF THE EAST
301.31 FEET THEREOF.

P.L.N.(s) 04-23-101-028 and 04-23-101-027

Resolution 2020-R-0028
Page 4 of 5



EXHIBIT “B”

(Insert Pre-Annexation Agreement)

Resolution 2020-R-0028
Page 5 of 5



DRAFT DOCUMENT

PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT

This Pre-Annexation Agreement (“AGREEMENT”), made and entered into this day of
, 2020, by and between the CITY OF WEST CHICAGO, an Illinois municipal
corporation (“WEST CHICAGO”), and Pulte Home Company, LLC (“DEVELOPER”); (DEVELOPER
and WEST CHICAGO being sometimes hereinafter referred to individually as a “PARTY” and collectively
as the “PARTIES").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, as of the date of this AGREEMENT DEVELOPER is the contract purchaser of the
property legally described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and by this reference, incorporated herein (the
“SUBJECT REALTY”); and

WHEREAS, as of the date of this Agreement the owner of the SUBJECT REALTY is Chicago
Title Land Trust Company as successor Trustee to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Successor Trustee
to American National Bank and Trust Company of Chicago, as Trustee under a Trust Agreement dated
February 25, 1987 and known as Trust No. 1029 (“OWNER”); and

WHEREAS, the SUBJECT REALTY is depicted on the Plat of Annexation attached hereto as
Exhibit “B” and by this reference, incorporated herein (“PLAT OF ANNEXATION"); and

WHEREAS, OWNER and DEVELOPER, each having interests in and to the SUBJECT REALTY,
have respectively filed with WEST CHICAGO petitions for annexation of the SUBJECT REALTY to
WEST CHICAGO, copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit “C”; and

WHEREAS, the SUBJECT REALTY consists of approximately 34.97 acres, and is presently
situated within the unincorporated areas of the County of DuPage; and

WHEREAS, the SUBJECT REALTY is not within the corporate limits of any municipality and is
not contiguous to the corporate limits of WEST CHICAGO; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-15.1-1 et seq., as amended, the PARTIES have the authority
to enter into this AGREEMENT and desire to do so; and

WHEREAS, the SUBJECT REALTY is presently developed as a nursery and zoned R-2 under the
DuPage County Zoning Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, DEVELOPER has obtained approval of a special use for a planned unit development
from the County of DuPage in order to permit redevelopment of the SUBJECT REALTY as an 84-unit

single family residential community; and

WHEREAS, the contemplated redevelopment of the SUBJECT REALTY relies on public utility
services being provided through WEST CHICAGO; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the PARTIES that the SUBJECT REALTY be annexed to WEST
CHICAGO on the terms and conditions more specifically set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of WEST CHICAGO and the DEVELOPER that the use and further
development of the SUBJECT REALTY proceed as soon as practicable subject to this AGREEMENT; and

1



DRAFT DOCUMENT

WHEREAS, all public hearings, as required by law, have been held by the Mayor and City Council
of WEST CHICAGO (the “CORPORATE AUTHORITIES”), upon the matters covered by this
AGREEMENT, and

WHEREAS, the CORPORATE AUTHORITIES of WEST CHICAGO, after due and careful
consideration, have concluded that the annexation, upon achieving contiguity, proposed zoning, and
development of the SUBJECT REALTY, upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, will be
compatible with the planning objectives of WEST CHICAGO and that the annexation of the SUBJECT
REALTY will extend the corporate limits and jurisdiction of WEST CHICAGO; will permit orderly
growth, planning and development of WEST CHICAGO; will increase the tax base of WEST CHICAGO;
will promote the general welfare of WEST CHICAGO; and will enable WEST CHICAGO to control the
further development of the area and serve the best interests of WEST CHICAGO; and

WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER, in furtherance of the development of the SUBJECT REALTY,
seeks assurances from WEST CHICAGO of certain terms and conditions and the continuation thereof for
a definite period of time; and

WHEREAS, by a favorable vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the CORPORATE AUTHORITIES
of WEST CHICAGO then holding office, a Resolution has heretofore been adopted authorizing the
execution of this AGREEMENT.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and in further consideration of
the mutual covenants, conditions and agreements herein contained, the PARTIES hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
INCORPORATION OF RECITALS

The PARTIES hereby confirm the truth and validity of the representations and recitations set forth
in the foregoing recitals. The PARTIES further acknowledge that the same are material to this
AGREEMENT and are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this AGREEMENT as though they
were fully set forth in this Article I.

ARTICLE II
AUTHORITY

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into by the PARTIES pursuant to and in accordance with
the provisions of 65 ILCS 5/11-15.1-1 et seq., as amended.

ARTICLE III
MUTUAL ASSISTANCE

The PARTIES shall do all things necessary or appropriate to carry out the terms and provisions of
this AGREEMENT and to aid and assist each other in furthering the objectives of this AGREEMENT and
the intent of the PARTIES as reflected by the terms of this AGREEMENT, including, without limitations,
the giving of such notices, the holding of such public hearings, and the enactment by WEST CHICAGO of
such resolutions and ordinances, the execution of such permits, applications and agreements and the taking
of such other actions as may be necessary to enable the PARTIES’ compliance with the terms and
provisions of this AGREEMENT and as may be necessary to give effect to the objectives of this
AGREEMENT and the intentions of the PARTIES as reflected by the terms of this AGREEMENT.



DRAFT DOCUMENT

The DEVELOPER’S obligations under this AGREEMENT, expressly including the obligation to
cause the SUBJECT REALTY to be annexed to WEST CHICAGO, shall be limited to the extent of
DEVELOPER'’S retained interest in the SUBJECT REALTY. At such time as DEVELOPER conveys any
portion of the SUBJECT REALTY, whether to the ASSOCIATION (as hereafter defined) or to a third-party
home buyer, the successor in interest to DEVELOPER shall be bound by the terms of this AGREEMENT and
shall be liable for the obligations hereunder with respect to that portion of the SUBJECT REALTY acquired
by said successor in interest.

ARTICLE IV
ANNEXATION

A, Annexation Process.  Subject to the provisions of 65 ILCS 5/7-1-8, as amended, the PARTIES
respectively agree to do all things reasonably necessary or appropriate to cause the SUBJECT REALTY to
be duly and validly annexed to WEST CHICAGO. The PARTIES agree that the redevelopment of the
SUBJECT REALTY shall occur in the County of DuPage and pursuant to the special use for a planned unit
development approved by the County Board of the County of DuPage on Tuesday, February 25, 2020.
WEST CHICAGO shall not take any action to formally annex the SUBJECT REALTY to WEST
CHICAGO prior to (the “ANNEXATION DATE”) the first to occur of: (i) the date that is four (4) years
from the date of this AGREEMENT; or (ii) upon DEVELOPER’S sale of the last residential home
constructed as part of the redevelopment of the SUBJECT REALTY. The SUBJECT REALTY shall be
annexed to WEST CHICAGO as of the ANNEXATION DATE consistent with the draft ordinance attached
as Exhibit “D”. A copy of the PLAT OF ANNEXATION is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. The provision
of the utility services hereinafter contemplated to be provided by WEST CHICAGO would not have been
made available to the SUBJECT REALTY but for the express covenant and agreement that DEVELOPER,
and thereafter any successors in interest to any portion of the SUBJECT REALTY would do all things
reasonably necessary or appropriate to cause the SUBJECT REALTY to be duly and validly annexed to
WEST CHICAGO as of the ANNEXATION DATE.

B. Waiver of Objection. DEVELOPER, and by acceptance of a deed each successor in interest to
any portion of the SUBJECT REALTY, hereby waives any objection to annexation of the SUBJECT
REALTY to WEST CHICAGO. Should any person having proper standing to do so bring a cause of action
before any court of competent jurisdiction challenging WEST CHICAGO’S lawful authority to annex the
SUBJECT REALTY or challenge the method or procedures by or through which the PARTIES purported
to cause the SUBJECT REALTY to be annexed to WEST CHICAGO, the PARTIES agree that they shall
fully cooperate, as provided in ARTICLE III hereof, to defend such cause of action.

184 Corrective Action. Should a court of competent jurisdiction finally determine that annexation
of the SUBJECT REALTY was defective because of the failure of the PARTIES to follow a procedural
requirement constituting a valid precondition to proper annexation of the SUBJECT REALTY, the
PARTIES, including the successors and assigns of the OWNERS, agree to promptly cause the SUBJECT
REALTY to be re-annexed to WEST CHICAGO in a manner which satisfies all procedural requirements.

ARTICLE V
ZONING

Immediately after the passage and approval of the Ordinance annexing the SUBJECT REALTY,
the CORPORATE AUTHORITIES of WEST CHICAGO shall, in accordance with 65 ILCS 5/11-13-14
and Section 5.6 of Appendix A (the “ZONING CODE”) of the West Chicago Code of Ordinances (the
“CODE"), conduct a public hearing to consider the passage of an Ordinance amending the WEST
CHICAGO Zoning Map to reclassify the SUBJECT REALTY from ER-1 Estate Residence District,
automatically granted to the SUBJECT REALTY upon annexation pursuant to Section 6.5 of the ZONING

3



DRAFT DOCUMENT

ORDINANCE of the CODE, to the R-5 Single Family Residence District with necessary and appropriate
variances based on the PRELIMINARY PLAT and improvements permitted through the County of
DuPage, specifically including: i) a side yard setback of six feet (6) for all of the lots; ii) a rear yard setback
of twenty-five feet (25%) for lots 9-84; iii) a rear yard setback of zero feet (0°) for lots 1-8; and iv) a
maximum lot coverage of 65%. It is the intent of the PARTIES that the SUBJECT REALTY, as developed,
would be annexed to WEST CHICAGO as a legally conforming use of the SUBJECT REALTY.

ARTICLE VI
DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY

A, Subdivision of SUBJECT REALTY. The DEVELOPER has submitted to WEST CHICAGO a
Preliminary Plat of Subdivision for an eighty-four (84) unit single-family detached residential subdivision
(“DEVELOPMENT”) for the SUBJECT REALTY, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part of
hereof as Exhibit “E” (“PRELIMINARY PLAT”). The SUBJECT REALTY shall be developed in
substantial conformance with the PRELIMINARY PLAT with not more than eighty-four (84) buildable
lots and associated outlots. To the extent of any conflict between the PRELIMINARY PLAT and the
CODE, the specific detail set forth in the PRELIMINARY PLAT shall prevail. Following approval of this
AGREEMENT, DEVELOPER shall prepare a Final Plat of Subdivision generally consistent with the layout
and design as depicted on the PRELIMINARY PLAT (“FINAL PLAT”). WEST CHICAGO shall approve
the FINAL PLAT provided that it is in substantial conformance with the PRELIMINARY PLAT.

B. Engineering. The DEVELOPER has submitted to WEST CHICAGO a Preliminary Engineering
Plan. consistent with the PRELIMINARY PLAT, that details the preliminary configuration and layout of

physical improvements to the SUBJECT REALTY associated with the DEVELOPMENT
“PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING”). A copy of the PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING, depicting both

improvements to the SUBJECT REALTY (“ON SITE IMRPOVEMENTS”) and improvements located in
either nearby right-of-way or within public utility easements (the “OFF SITE IMPROVEMENTS"), is

attached hereto as Exhibit “F”. The PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING is intended to approve the general
location and routing of the ON SITE IMPROVEMENTS and the OFF SITE IMPROVEMENTS, including
the lift station, force main and the connections to WEST CHICAGO sanitary sewer and water systems. The
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING does not approve construction of either the ON SITE
IMPROVEMENTS or the OFF SITE IMPROVEMENTS. which shall be detailed in Final Engineerin
Plans (“FINAL ENGINEERING PLANS”) to be prepared by DEVELOPER and which are subject to the
review and approval of WEST CHICAGO, but reflects the intended layout and general character of public
improvements to be constructed as a part of the DEVELOPMENT.

(12 Sewer and Water Connections. From and after the execution of this AGREEMENT, and provided
that the DEVELOPER is in full compliance with its obligations under this AGREEMENT, the
DEVELOPER shall have the right to connect the SUBJECT REALTY to WEST CHICAGO’S sanitary
sewer and water systems. The DEVELOPER shall bear all costs and expenses relating to such connections.
Upon connection to WEST CHICAGO’S sanitary sewer and water systems, all dwelling units constructed
as part of the DEVELOPMENT shall pay two times the standard WEST CHICAGO residential water and
sewer rates through the first to occur of: i) ANNEXATION DATE,; or ii) for each dwelling unit, for a period
(the “PAYMENT PERIOD”) of forty-eight (48) months from the date that a certificate of occupancy is
first issued for the dwelling unit. The PAYMENT PERIOD shall commence on the date that a certificate
of occupancy is first issued for each dwelling unit and to the extent that the certificate of occupancy is not
issued by the CITY, then DEVELOPER shall be responsible for providing a copy of the applicable
certificate of occupancy to the CITY. The PAYMENT PERIOD shall terminate forty-eight months
following the date of the certificate of occupancy; provide, however, that if the PAYMENT PERIOD
terminates: i) between January 1 and June 30 of any given year then the billing rate shall be updated for all
bills issued after July 1 of that year; or ii) between July | and December 31 of any given year then the

4



DRAFT DOCUMENT

billing rate shall be updated for all bills issued after January 1 of the following year.. Following the
ANNEXATION DATE or PAYMENT PERIOD, as may be applicable, dwelling units constructed as part
of the DEVELOPMENT shall pay the standard WEST CHICAGO residential water and sewer rates.
Except for the CONNECTION FEES set forth herein, there are no other fees payable to WEST CHICAGO
as a condition to connection to WEST CHICAGO’S sanitary sewer and water systems. The
CONNECTION FEES shall be payable by DEVELOPER on a per lot basis at the time of issuance of a
building permit for each lot. DEVELOPER agrees to pay the following connection fees (collectively the
“CONNECTION FEES”):

Recapture Fees: $0.00
Administration Charge: $0.00
Sewer Treatment Plan Capacity Charge: The required fee amount to be paid shall be the

current fee established by the West
Chicago/Winfield Wastewater Authority at the
time of issuance of each building permit.

Sewer Connection Charge: $0.00
Water Plant Capacity Charge: $0.00
Water Connection Fee: $0.00
Water Meter: The required fee amount to be paid shall be the

current fee established by the CITY at the time of
issuance of each building permit.

D. Water Main Extension and Reimbursement. In addition to all required improvements to the
SUBJECT REALTY as part of the DEVELOPMENT, DEVELOPER agrees to install an eight (8) inch
water main within the adjacent Purnell Road right-of-way extending generally from Lot 49 to Lot 1 of the
DEVELOPMENT, approximately 720 linear feet as depicted on the PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING
(“WATER MAIN EXTENSION”). Upon completion of the WATER MAIN EXTENSION and
DEVELOPER'’S submittal of an affidavit, acceptable to the City, setting forth the actual costs to construct
the WATER MAIN EXTENSION, WEST CHICAGO shall reimburse DEVELOPER for fifty (50) percent
of the actual cost to install the aforementioned water main. Said reimbursement shall be made within thirty
(30) days of the date of the aforementioned DEVELOPER’S affidavit of costs. PARTIES agree that such
amount to be reimbursed from WEST CHICAGO to the DEVELOPER shall not exceed $11,000.00.

E. Water and Sewer Capacity. WEST CHICAGO represents and warrants to DEVELOPER that
as of the date of this AGREEMENT its water and sanitary sewage systems have capacity necessary and
sufficient to provide service for the DEVELOPMENT, and the DEVELOPER will be able to connect the
SUBJECT REALTY to said systems. WEST CHICAGO hereby agrees to reserve necessary and
appropriate capacity for the contemplated development of the SUBJECT REALTY in its water and sanitary
sewage systems for a period of not less than ten (10) years from the EFFECTIVE DATE (“Guaranty
Term™). With respect to said water and sanitary sewage systems, WEST CHICAGO shall treat the
DEVELOPER and the SUBJECT REALTY in the same manner, provide the same level of service, and
provide the same cost structure to DEVELOPER and the SUBJECT REALTY as WEST CHICAGO
provides to any other property in its jurisdiction. WEST CHICAGO makes no specific representation or
warranty as to the continued availability of water supply and waste water treatment capacity beyond the
Guaranty Term except that WEST CHICAGO shall make all reasonable efforts to continue to own and
operate its utilities in a manner intended to provide adequate future water supply and treatment capacity
subject to the availability of sufficient funds for such utility operations regulatory restraints or conditions
on service and such other matters generally considered to be in the nature of “force majeure”. Upon
expiration of the Guaranty Term, the inability of WEST CHICAGO to serve the full water supply or waste
water treatment requirements of the DEVELOPER, their successors or assigns, shall not give rise to any




DRAFT DOCUMENT

cause of action on behalf of any such parties for specific enforcement, damages or other relief at law or in
equity.

F. Public Ownership. Upon completion of construction of the sanitary sewer and water system
(including the lift station and force main) extensions to and through the SUBJECT REALTY, including the
extension of the water system along Illinois State Route 38, and following approval of said construction by
the city engineer as being consistent with the approved FINAL ENGINEERING and the CODE, WEST
CHICAGO shall accept ownership of said improvements by bill of sale executed and delivered by
DEVELOPER.

G. Surety. DEVELOPER shall post surety with WEST CHICAGO to secure completion of
the public water main and sanitary sewer improvements herein contemplated. Surety may be posted in the
form of a bond, subject to WEST CHICAGO attorney review, with all costs incurred by WEST CHICAGO
for such attorney review being the responsibility of the DEVELOPER, on terms and conditions generally
consistent with the form attached hereto as Exhibit “G” (“PERFORMANCE SURETY™). The surety shall
be in the amount of 110% of the engineer’s opinion of probable construction costs (“EOPC”) to complete
construction of the public water main and sanitary sewer improvements. Upon completion of construction
of the public water main and sanitary sewer improvements herein contemplated and approval thereof by
the City Engineer as being consistent with the FINAL ENGINEERING, Developer shall warrant the
improvements for the period of 1 year and post surety with WEST CHICAGO in the amount of 10% of the
EOPC to secure said warranty (“GUARANTY SURETY"). WEST CHICAGO shall release the
PERFORMANCE SURETY at such time as the GUARANTY SURETY is posted. WEST CHICAGO
shall release the PERFORMANCE SURETY at such time as the warranty period expires.

H. Storm Sewers. DEVELOPER hereby agrees that the homeowners” association (“ASSOCIATION™)
to be established as part of the approval of the DEVELOPMENT shall, among other things, own, maintain,
and otherwise be responsible for the repair, replacement, and remedy of all storm sewer infrastructure
within SUBJECT REALTY. PARTIES agree that WEST CHICAGO shall take no responsibility to repair,
replace or otherwise maintain storm sewer infrastructure within SUBJECT REALTY.

L Permitting. WEST CHICAGO acknowledges and agrees that certain infrastructure associated with
the DEVELOPMENT will be constructed within certain rights-of-way operated by either the Illinois
Department of Transportation (“IDOT”) or Winfield Township (“TOWNSHIP”). Work occurring within
either the IDOT or TOWNSHIP right-of-way may require one or more construction permits issued by IDOT
or the TOWNSHIP, as may be applicable. WEST CHICAGO shall execute and issue Illinois
Environmental Permit Agency applications as may be necessary to construct water or sanitary sewer
connections prior to the issuance of permits from IDOT or the TOWNSHIP. Further, provided that
DEVELOPER has submitted permit applications to IDOT, WEST CHICAGO shall issue such construction
permits as may be reasonably required by DEVELOPER to commence construction of the water and
sanitary sewer improvements provided that any such permit may require that no work is commenced in the
IDOT right-of-way until IDOT has authorized said work. To the extent that more than one permit is
required with respect to the work to be completed within the IDOT right-of-way, DEVELOPER shall be
permitted to proceed with the work in phases and WEST CHICAGO shall authorize utility connections
accordingly. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all of the utility connections within the IDOT right-of-way
shall be completed prior to WEST CHICAGO permitting a water connection for the forty-fifth (45") home
to be constructed on the SUBJECT REALTY.

J. Insurance. As a condition of any permit issued by WEST CHICAGO, DEVELOPER shall
furnish to WEST CHICAGO evidence of commercial general liability insurance in the amount of at least
$5,000,000 covering the construction activities of the DEVELOPER contemplated by this AGREEMENT.



DRAFT DOCUMENT

The certificate of insurance shall name WEST CHICAGO as an additional insured. DEVELOPER shall
also carry worker’s compensation insurance with minimum policy limits in accordance with Illinois law.

K. Utility Installations. WEST CHICAGO shall allow DEVELOPER to install Commonwealth
Edison and other necessary utilities in the front yard utility easements as shown on the Preliminary Plat.

L. Homeowners’ Association. DEVELOPER shall, prior to the conveyance of any residential
structure constructed upon the SUBJECT REALTY, record a declaration of covenants, conditions and
restrictions (“DECLARATION”) to govern the use and operation of the SUBJECT REALTY. A copy of
the draft DECLARATION has been provided to the CITY concurrent with the review and approval of the
PRELIMINARY PLAT. The DECLARATION shall provide for the formation of an ASSOCIATION. The
ASSOCIATION shall be formed once thirty (30) percent of the proposed residential units are constructed
and become occupied. All of the owners of any portion of the SUBJECT REALTY shall be members of
the ASSOCIATION. The ASSOCIATION shall be minimally responsible for the ownership, operation,
maintenance, repair and replacement of any outlots created as part of the SUBJECT REALTY and for any
improvements thereto. The members of the ASSOCIATION shall be responsible for the payment of such
sums as are necessary and appropriate to conduct the business of the ASSOCIATION. Without of the
consent of the CITY, the provisions of the draft DECLARATION contained in Article 6.02(c) (regarding
payment of budget shortfalls) and Article 6.08 (regarding Initial Capital Contribution) shall not be modified
to reduce or eliminate the financial liability contained therein. The ASSOCIATION shall assume the
obligations of DEVELOPER under the terms of this AGREEMENT as of the date that DEVELOPER
conveys its interest in the outlots to the ASSOCIATION.

ARTICLE VII
SCHOOL, PARK, LIBRARY AND FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

A. Applicable Requirements and Payment Terms. Except as modified by this AGREEMENT, as a
condition of the issuance of the first new construction building permit(s) with respect to each lot comprising
the SUBJECT REALTY, the DEVELOPER shall pay impact fees in-lieu-of land dedication in accordance
with Appendix B of the Code (the “SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS™), specifically Appendix D of the
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS (“IMPACT FEES”). Prior to annexation of the SUBJECT REALTY, the
IMPACT FEES shall be paid on a per lot basis to the County of DuPage upon receipt of the first new
construction building permit for each lot. Upon annexation of the SUBJECT REALTY to WEST
CHICAGO, the IMPACT FEES shall be paid on a per lot basis directly to WEST CHICAGO upon receipt
of the first new construction building permit for each lot. To the extent that IMPACT FEES for any lot
were paid to the County of DuPage prior to annexation of the SUBJECT REALTY to WEST CHICAGO,
no fees shall be payable to WEST CHICAGO upon annexation of said lot to WEST CHICAGO. Except
for the IMPACT FEES set forth in Article VII(B) below, no other IMPACT FEES shall be under the CODE
with respect to the SUBJECT REALTY.

B. Fee Adjustments for Age-Restriction. The IMPACT FEES  associated  with  the
DEVELOPMENT that are payable to the applicable taxing districts shall be in accordance with Appendix
D of the CITY’s Subdivision Regulations Code. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the County of
DuPage imposed a condition on the special use governing the development of the SUBJECT REALTY that
the DEVELOPMENT would be age-restricted in accordance with the Housing For Older Persons Act of
1995. The IMPACT FEES payable with respect to the DEVELOPMENT shall be adjusted for Community
High School District 94 and West Chicago Elementary School District 33 according agreement between
DEVELOPER and the district(s) if, and only if, the CITY receives concurrence in writing from the
authorized representatives from said districts. If such documentation is not received from a particular
district, then the IMPACT FEES owed to that particular district shall be based on Appendix D of the City’s
Subdivision Code.



DRAFT DOCUMENT

ARTICLE VIII
OTHER FEES

As of the date of this AGREEMENT, DEVELOPER has paid to WEST CHICAGO an annexation
application fee in the amount of one thousand three hundred and 00/100™ Dollars ($1,300.00). No other
fees or charges shall be payable with respect to the SUBJECT REALTY associated with the approval of
this AGREEMENT or the approval of the PRELIMINARY PLAT as herein contemplated. DEVELOPER
shall be responsible for payment of applicable fees pursuant to Appendix G of the Code for approval of the
FINAL PLAT as herein contemplated. The DEVELOPER and WEST CHICAGO contemplate that WEST
CHICAGO will issue permits for connection of the SUBJECT REALTY to WEST CHICAGO sanitary
sewer and water system and that DEVELOPER will pay said permit fees and all required engineering
inspection fees associated with, and required for, said connection consistent with the terms set forth in
Article VI of this AGREEMENT prior to the issuance of said permits for connection. Prior to annexation
of the SUBJECT REALTY to WEST CHICAGO, DEVELOPER shall not be responsible for the payment
of any other permit fees or charges to WEST CHICAGO associated with the DEVELOPMENT
contemplated to occur through the County of DuPage. In the event that the SUBJECT REALTY is annexed
to WEST CHICAGO prior to the completion of the DEVELOPMENT in the County of DuPage, then
DEVELOPER shall be responsible for payment of subject fees and charges to WEST CHICAGO consistent
with the generally applicable fee schedule for all property located in WEST CHICAGO as set forth in the
CODE. In accordance with Section 19.1 of Appendix G of the CODE, DEVELOPER shall reimburse
WEST CHICAGO for such professional fees and costs as shall actually be incurred by WEST CHICAGO,
in the event that WEST CHICAGO, in its sole and exclusive discretion, determines that it is necessary or
desirable to obtain professional services, including, but not limited to, attorneys, engineers, planners,
architects, surveyors, traffic, drainage or other consultants, and/or to incur costs related to any required
notices or recordation, in connection with the any application or petition filed by the DEVELOPER.

ARTICLE IX
ANNEXATION CORRIDOR AND EASEMENTS

The PARTIES acknowledge that WEST CHICAGO is working with the owners of certain
property located between the corporate boundary of WEST CHICAGO and the SUBJECT REALTY
concerning an agreement for an annexation corridor and other rights with respect to the extension of
public utilities. The Parties agree that WEST CHICAGO shall be solely responsible for the negotiation of
any such agreements and that WEST CHICAGO shall be solely and exclusively responsible for any fees,
contributions, penalties, costs or other payments associated with said agreements or any work to be
performed under said agreements.

ARTICLE X
RECAPTURE

In the event that DEVELOPER constructs and installs any on or off-site public improvements
(i.e. force main and lift station) contemplated by this Agreement or required by the CODE, and such
improvements are constructed in a fashion that benefits owners, developers or users of property other than
the DEVELOPMENT, then WEST CHICAGO and DEVELOPER shall enter into a recapture agreement
in accordance with 65 ILCS 5/9-5-1 et. seq., in form and substance acceptable to WEST CHICAGO and
DEVELOPER, which recapture agreement shall provide, among other things, that the DEVELOPER shall
be entitled to reimbursements from the owners, developers and users of property other than the
DEVELOPMENT benefited by such public improvements for that portion of the actual costs, together

8



DRAFT DOCUMENT

with reasonable interest thereon, to design, construct and install such improvements which benefit the
owners, developers or users of property other than the DEVELOPMENT, provided, however, that such
reimbursements shall be conditioned upon the actual development, use or occupancy of such property in a
manner that uses or accesses the benefits provided by the public improvements. In advance of any
recapture agreement or amendment to the recapture agreement, the DEVELOPER shall prepare a study
acceptable to WEST CHICAGO demonstrating the degree of proportional benefit.

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEQOUS PROVISIONS

A. Recordation. The PARTIES agree to do all things necessary to cause this AGREEMENT to be
recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds, DuPage County, Illinois. The DEVELOPER shall be
responsible for payment of all applicable document recording fees.

B. Notices. All notices hereunder shall be in writing and must be served either personally or
be registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to any such other person or place which any PARTY hereto,
by its prior written notice, shall designate for notice to it from the other PARTIES hereto.

WEST CHICAGO: City of West Chicago
c/o City Administrator
475 Main Street
West Chicago, Illinois 60185

DEVELOPER: Pulte Home Company, LLC
1900 E. Golf Road, Suite 300
Schaumburg, Illinois 60173

COPY to: Rosanova & Whitaker, Ltd.
127 Aurora Ave
Naperville, [llinois 60540
c/o Russell Whitaker

C. Binding Effect, Term and Amendment. Except as otherwise herein provided, this AGREEMENT shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the PARTIES hereto, successor owners of record of the SUBJECT
REALTY, their assigns, lessees and upon any successor municipal authority of WEST CHICAGO, for a period
of twenty (20) years from the EFFECTIVE DATE. Changes to the plans approved pursuant to this
AGREEMENT may be approved as required under the CODE and shall not require an amendment of this
AGREEMENT. It is the intent of the PARTIES that DEVELOPER is liable under this AGREEMENT only
to the extent of DEVELOPER’S retained interest in the SUBJECT REALTY. At such time as DEVELOPER
conveys any portion of the SUBJECT REALT'Y, the successor in interest to DEVELOPER shall be bound by
the terms of this AGREEMENT and shall be liable for the obligations hereunder with respect to that portion of
the SUBJECT REALTY acquired by said successor in interest. Within ten (10) days of a conveyance by
DEVELOPER, the successor in interest shall notify WEST CHICAGO in writing of such conveyance and shall
promptly provide WEST CHICAGO with the security instrument as required in Article VI of this
AGREEMENT ensuring completion of any and all outstanding public improvements. DEVELOPER shall
have no continuing obligation or liability under this Agreement once DEVELOPER has conveyed all of its
interest in the SUBJECT REALTY.



DRAFT DOCUMENT

It is the intent of the PARTIES that this Agreement and the associated zoning ordinances would be
approved by the WEST CHICAGO and thereafter executed by the PARTIES within one hundred and twenty
(120) days, but that the documentation would be submitted into a closing escrow and would not be recorded
until such time as the DEVELOPER acquires the SUBJECT REALTY. This AGREEMENT shall be effective
upon the date it is first recorded against the SUBJECT REALTY (the “EFFECTIVE DATE”). The foregoing
notwithstanding, the EFFECTIVE DATE shall be on or before December 31, 2020 (“OUTSIDE DATE”)
unless that date is extended by a vote of 2/3rds of the CORPORATE AUTHORITIES of WEST CHICAGO.
If the AGREEMENT is not recorded by the OUTSIDE DATE as extended, this AGREEMENT shall be
deemed null and void and shall not thereafter be recorded.

It is hereby understood and agreed that this AGREEMENT is a covenant running with the land and
is binding thereon. All persons who take title to any part of the SUBJECT REALTY shall comply with the
provisions of this AGREEMENT. This AGREEMENT may be amended from time to time with the written
consent of the PARTIES hereto, pursuant to statute in such case made and provided.

D. Severability. = This AGREEMENT is entered into pursuant to the provisions of 65 ILCS 5/11-
15.1-1 et seq., as amended. In the event any part of portion of this AGREEMENT, or any provision, clause,
wording or designation contained within this AGREEMENT is held to be invalid by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such part, portion, provision, clause, wording or designation shall be deemed to be excised
from this AGREEMENT and the invalidity thereof shall not affect the remaining portions hereof.

E. Enforceability. This AGREEMENT shall be enforceable in any court of competent jurisdiction by
any of the PARTIES hereto by any appropriate action at law or in equity, including, without limitation, the
right of any PARTY hereto to seek specific performance of the terms hereof.

F. Survival of Representations:  Each of the PARTIES hereto, for themselves, their successors,
assigns, heirs, devisees and personal representatives, agrees that the warranties and recitals set forth in the
preambles hereto are material to this AGREEMENT, and the PARTIES hereby confirm and admit their
truth and validity and hereby incorporate such representations, warranties and recitals into this
AGREEMENT, and the same shall continue during the term of this AGREEMENT. The provisions of this
AGREEMENT shall survive the annexation and zoning of the SUBJECT REALTY by WEST CHICAGO,
and shall not be merged or expunged by such annexation and zoning,.

G. Gender. Unless the provisions of this AGREEMENT otherwise require, words imparting
the masculine gender shall include the feminine; words imparting the singular number shall include the
plural; and words imparting the plural shall include the singular.

H. Captions and Paragraph Headings. The captions and paragraph headings incorporated herein
are for reference only and are not part of this AGREEMENT.

L Changes in Regulations. It is the intent of the PARTIES that the SUBJECT REALTY be
developed in accordance with the FINAL PLAT and the FINAL ENGINEERING. To the extent and that
changes to CODE would conflict with either the FINAL PLAT or the FINAL ENGINEERING said changes
shall be inapplicable with respect to the SUBJECT REALTY for the term of this AGREEMENT.
Additionally, it is the intent of the PARTIES that no residential fire sprinkler systems would be required as
a condition of any permit issued for the SUBJECT REALTY and that any changes to the CODE which
would impose a residential fire sprinkler requirement would be inapplicable to the SUBJECT REALTY for
the term of this AGREEMENT.

SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW

10



DRAFT DOCUMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the date first
above written.

CITY OF WEST CHICAGO,
an lllinois Municipal Corporation,

By:

Mayor, Ruben Pineda

ATTEST:

City Clerk, Nancy M. Smith

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY that Ruben Pineda, Mayor of the CITY OF WEST CHICAGO, and Nancy Smith, City Clerk of
said City, personally known to me to be the same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing
instrument as such Mayor and City Clerk, respectively appeared before me this day in person and
acknowledged that they signed and delivered the said instrument as their own free and voluntary act and as the
free and voluntary act of said City, for the uses and purposes therein set forth; and the said City Clerk then and
there acknowledged that she, as custodian of the corporate seal of said City, did affix the corporate seal of said
City to said instrument, as her own free and voluntary act and as the free and voluntary act of said City, for the
uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this day of :

2020.

Notary Public

31



DRAFT DOCUMENT

DEVELOPER
PULTE HOME COMPANY, LLC
A Michigan limited liability company

By:

Its:

STATE OF ILLINOIS )

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY that the , personally known to me to be the same person whose name is

subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that he signed

and delivered the said instrument as his own free and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal this _ day of )
2020.

Notary Public

12



DRAFT DOCUMENT

Exhibit “A”
SUBJECT REALTY Legal Description

Exhibit “B”

Plat of Annexation

Exhibit “C”
Petition for Annexation

Exhibit “D”

Draft Annexation Ordinance

Exhibit “E”
Preliminary Plat of Subdivision

Exhibit “F”
Preliminary Engineering Plan

Exhibit “G”

Performance Surety

13



DRAFT DOCUMENT

Exhibit “A”
SUBJECT REALTY Legal Description



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE NORTH 370 FEET OF THE WEST 379.30 FEET OF THE FOLLOWING
DESCRIBED PROPERTY: THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING
AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION
AFORESAID; THENCE WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER
SECTION 663.8 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 512.87
FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER
SECTION, 669.2 FEET; THENCE NORTH 512.87 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF
SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE EAST 669.2 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE
NORTH 78.92 FEET THEREOF.

THE SOUTH 229.73 FEET OF THE NORTH 599.73 FEET OF THE WEST 379.3
FEET OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: THAT PART OF THE
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST Y% OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39
NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE
NORTHWEST % OF SECTION 23 AFORESAID; THENCE WEST ALONG THE
NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 663.8 FEET FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 512.87 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL WITH
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 669.2 FEET; THENCE NORTH
512.87 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE
EAST 669.2 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; AND THAT PART OF LOT 1,
EXCEPT THAT PART THEREOF LYING SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2
EXTENDED WESTERLY TO THE WEST LINE OF LOT 1 OF WILLIAM A.
MOYER'S ASSESSMENT PLAT OF PART OF SECTION 23, AFORESAID,
RECORDED MAY 10, 1951 AS DOCUMENT 622994, ALL IN DU PAGE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

THAT PART OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED BY BEGINNING AT THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 23 AND RUNNING THENCE NORTH
88 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID
SECTION 23, 1334.75 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 13
SECONDS EAST ALONG AN OLD FENCE LINE AND ALONG THE WEST LINE
OF W. A. MOYER'S ASSESSMENT PLAT, 1747.56 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE
OF PURNELL ROAD; THENCE NORTH 43 DEGREES 09 MINUTES WEST ALONG
SAID CENTER LINE, 1964.24 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 23;
THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 13 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID
WEST LINE, 276.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN DUPAGE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE NORTH 78.92 FEET OF THE EAST

301.31 FEET THEREOF.



DRAFT DOCUMENT

Exhibit “B”
Plat of Annexation



HOTES

ML MERSLSEMINTS AR Sale i NTET AMD DOCMAL
PARPS TaOROOT

DeCNGONS Sa0wd MLONE CURVES WAL ASC DrsLanols
DTN DWCLOSED W0 [ | ARD BOTORD S4TR,
ML ORR DRDEONS. AR WAL

WO LM OF SUSUCCT PEOPCRTY BINE N BRI

]

T STATMGS SrOwM HEREDN ARC BASKD W D

PREPNALD FOR-

PULTE HOME COMPANY LLC

g
1
2
bl
=
<
2

R
g
=
g
g
&

=3
3
i
3
:
=
2
3
ul
8

y

COMPLETION DATE:  DS-N1-22 JOR MO AOTNIS

Copre gl ) 3% Qe 08 AN op s denemd

|

o
-
—
=
c
]
=
=]
o

CRam Y. AB . B S PC MO DEM

SOAIT-R575 Pet E3ABETIN0 P EI0.880.

DOC WOL SIO13S  FLL NAMD:  ANMEX

S0 e O e e 190w, e

D]
Vi

TO THE CITY OF WEST CHICAGO, ILLINOIS
I )

PILAT OF ANNEXATION

T A

SIATE OF musrS)
COUNTY OF BUSALT)

1] "
ELMOS, 06 TS ___ DAY OF
T

E

¢
%,

e AT B R s

SRR T



DRAFT DOCUMENT

EXhibi'l “C”
Petition for Annexation



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

PETITION FOR ANNEXATION

TO: Mayor & City Council
City of West Chicago
DuPage County, Illinois

THE PETITIONER, David J. Tyznik, as General Partner of Trillium Company, as sole
beneficiary of Chicago Title Land Trust Company as Successor Trustee to LaSalle Bank National
Association, as Successor Trustee to American National Bank and Trust Company of Chicago, as
Trustee under a Trust Agreement dated February 25, 1987 and known as Trust No. 1029, as owner
of the approximately 30 acres located at 28W571 Roosevelt Road in unincorporated DuPage
County, which property is legally described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof
(the “Property™), hereby requests that the City of West Chicago take the necessary and appropriate
action, pursuant to state and local law, to annex the Property to the City of City of West Chicago
subject to the terms of a mutually agreeable annexation agreement.

In support of this Petition for Annexation, the undersigned hereby swears to the following
under oath and penalty of perjury:

1. Chicago Title Land Trust Company as Successor Trustee to LaSalle Bank National
Association, as Successor Trustee to American National Bank and Trust Company of
Chicago, as Trustee under a Trust Agreement dated February 25, 1987 and known as Trust
No. 1029 is the sole owner of the Property legally described on Exhibit A, attached hereto;

2. The Property is unincorporated and is not presently located in the jurisdiction of any other
municipality;

3. The Property is contiguous to the City of West Chicago, lies within the planning
jurisdiction of the City of West Chicago and is identified in the City’s Comprehensive Plan
for development with the corporate limits of the City of West Chicago; and

4. There are no electors residing on the Property.

WHEREFORE, Chicago Title Land Trust Company as Successor Trustee to LaSalle Bank
National Association, as Successor Trustee to American National Bank and Trust Company of
Chicago, as Trustee under a Trust Agreement dated February 25, 1987 and known as Trust No.
1029, hereby respectfully requests that the City take such action as is necessary and appropriate to
annex the Property to the City of West Chicago subject to and conditioned upon the terms of a
mutually agreeable annexation agreement, which annexation agreement shall: i) be drawn by and
between the City of West Chicago and Pulte Home Company, LLC a Michigan limited liability
company or its assignee (“Developer™); ii) become effective only upon Petitioner’s conveyance of



the Property to Developer; iii) set forth the terms upon which the Property shall be annexed to the
City of West Chicago; and iv) set forth such other rights and obligations with respect to the
Property as the City and Developer may mutually agree.

OWNER

Chicago Title Land Trust Company as Successor

Trustee to LaSalle Bank National Association, as

Successor Trustee to American National Bank and

Trust Company of Chicago, as Trustee under a Trust

Agreement dated February 25, 1987 and known as Trust No. 1029

By: Trillium Company, its sole beneficiary
By:

Name: David J. Tyznik
Its: General Partner

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT , personally known to me to be the
same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing document, appeared before me this day
in person and acknowledged to me that, as the General Partner of Trillium Company as sole
beneficiary of Chicago Title Land Trust Company as Successor Trustee to LaSalle Bank
National Association, as Successor Trustee to American National Bank and Trust Company of
Chicago, as Trustee under a Trust Agreement dated February 25, 1987 and known as Trust No.
1029, he was duly authorized and signed and delivered the foregoing document as his free and
voluntary act by and on behalf of Chicago Title Land Trust Company as Successor Trustee to
LaSalle Bank National Association, as Successor Trustee to American National Bank and Trust
Company of Chicago, as Trustee under a Trust Agreement dated February 25, 1987 and known
as Trust No. 1029 for the uses and purpose therein set forth.

Given under my hand and Notarial Seal as of this day of , 2020.

Notary Public

My Commission expires:




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE NORTH 370 FEET OF THE WEST 379.30 FEET OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED
PROPERTY: THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF
SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION AFORESAID; THENCE WEST ALONG
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 663.8 FEET FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 512.87 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL WITH THE
NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION, 669.2 FEET; THENCE NORTH 512.87 FEET
TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE EAST 669.2 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXCEPTING
THEREFROM THE NORTH 78.92 FEET THEREOF.

THE SOUTH 229.73 FEET OF THE NORTH 599.73 FEET OF THE WEST 379.3 FEET OF
THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
THE NORTHWEST Y: OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST % OF SECTION 23 AFORESAID; THENCE
WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 663.8 FEET FOR A
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 512.87 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL
WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 669.2 FEET; THENCE NORTH
512.87 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE EAST 669.2
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; AND THAT PART OF LOT 1, EXCEPT THAT
PART THEREOF LYING SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 EXTENDED
WESTERLY TO THE WEST LINE OF LOT 1 OF WILLIAM A. MOYER'S ASSESSMENT
PLAT OF PART OF SECTION 23, AFORESAID, RECORDED MAY 10, 1951 AS
DOCUMENT 622994, ALL IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

THAT PART OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED BY BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER
OF SAID SECTION 23 AND RUNNING THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 19
SECONDS EAST ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 23, 1334.75 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 0 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST ALONG AN OLD FENCE LINE
AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF W. A. MOYER'S ASSESSMENT PLAT, 1747.56 FEET
TO THE CENTER LINE OF PURNELL ROAD; THENCE NORTH 43 DEGREES 09
MINUTES WEST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 1964.24 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF
SAID SECTION 23; THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 13 SECONDS WEST
ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 276.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN DUPAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE NORTH 78.92 FEET OF THE EAST
301.31 FEET THEREOF.



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

PETITION FOR ANNEXATION

TO: Mayor & City Council
City of West Chicago
DuPage County, Illinois

THE PETITIONER, Pulte Home Company, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company,
as contract purchaser of the approximately 30 acres located at 28W571 Roosevelt Road in
unincorporated DuPage County, which property is legally described on Exhibit A, attached hereto
and made a part hereof (the “Property”), hereby requests that the City of West Chicago take the
necessary and appropriate action, pursuant to state and local law, to annex the Property to the City
of City of West Chicago subject to the terms of a mutually agreeable annexation agreement.

In support of this Petition for Annexation, the undersigned hereby swears to the following
under oath and penalty of perjury:

1. Chicago Title Land Trust Company as Successor Trustee to LaSalle Bank National
Association, as Successor Trustee to American National Bank and Trust Company of
Chicago, as Trustee under a Trust Agreement dated February 25, 1987 and known as Trust
No. 1029 is the sole owner of the Property legally described on Exhibit A, attached hereto;

2. The Property is unincorporated and is not presently located in the jurisdiction of any other
municipality;

3. The Property is contiguous to the City of West Chicago, lies within the planning
jurisdiction of the City of West Chicago and is identified in the City’s Comprehensive Plan
for development with the corporate limits of the City of West Chicago; and

4, There are no electors residing on the Property.

WHEREFORE, Pulte Home Company, LLC, hereby respectfully requests that the City
take such action as is necessary and appropriate to annex the Property to the City of West Chicago
subject to and conditioned upon the terms of a mutually agreeable annexation agreement, which
annexation agreement shall: i) be drawn by and between the City of West Chicago and Pulte Home
Company, LLC a Michigan limited liability company or its assignee; ii) become effective only
upon conveyance of the Property from Chicago Title Land Trust Company as Successor Trustee
to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Successor Trustee to American National Bank and Trust
Company of Chicago, as Trustee under a Trust Agreement dated February 25, 1987 and known as
Trust No. 1029 to Pulte Home Company, LLC; iii) set forth the terms upon which the Property
shall be annexed to the City of West Chicago; and iv) set forth such other rights and obligations
with respect to the Property as the City and Developer may mutually agree.



PETITIONER
Pulte Home Company, LLC, a Michigan
limited liability company

By:
Name:
Its:

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY THAT , personally known to me to be the
same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing document, appeared before me this day
in person and acknowledged to me that, as the , of Pulte
Home Company, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, he was duly authorized and signed
and delivered the foregoing document as his free and voluntary act by and on behalf of Pulte
Home Company, LLC for the uses and purpose therein set forth.

Given under my hand and Notarial Seal as of this day of , 2020.

Notary Public

My Commission expires:




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE NORTH 370 FEET OF THE WEST 379.30 FEET OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED
PROPERTY: THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF
SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION AFORESAID; THENCE WEST ALONG
THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 663.8 FEET FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 512.87 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL WITH THE
NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION, 669.2 FEET; THENCE NORTH 512.87 FEET
TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE EAST 669.2 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXCEPTING
THEREFROM THE NORTH 78.92 FEET THEREOF.

THE SOUTH 229.73 FEET OF THE NORTH 599.73 FEET OF THE WEST 379.3 FEET OF
THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
THE NORTHWEST % OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHWEST ' OF SECTION 23 AFORESAID; THENCE
WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 663.8 FEET FOR A
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 512.87 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL
WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION 669.2 FEET; THENCE NORTH
512.87 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; THENCE EAST 669.2
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; AND THAT PART OF LOT 1, EXCEPT THAT
PART THEREOF LYING SOUTH OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 2 EXTENDED
WESTERLY TO THE WEST LINE OF LOT 1 OF WILLIAM A. MOYER'S ASSESSMENT
PLAT OF PART OF SECTION 23, AFORESAID, RECORDED MAY 10, 1951 AS
DOCUMENT 622994, ALL IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

THAT PART OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED BY BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER
OF SAID SECTION 23 AND RUNNING THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 19
SECONDS EAST ON THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 23, 1334.75 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 0 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST ALONG AN OLD FENCE LINE
AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF W. A. MOYER'S ASSESSMENT PLAT, 1747.56 FEET
TO THE CENTER LINE OF PURNELL ROAD; THENCE NORTH 43 DEGREES 09
MINUTES WEST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 1964.24 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF
SAID SECTION 23; THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 13 SECONDS WEST
ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 276.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN DUPAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE NORTH 78.92 FEET OF THE EAST
301.31 FEET THEREOF.



DRAFT DOCUMENT

Exhibit “D”

Draft Annexation Ordinance



EXHIBIT “D”

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX-0-XXXX

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF WEST CHICAGO, ILLINOIS,
PROVIDING FOR THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN TERRITORY
LOCATED AT 28W541 ROOSEVELT ROAD AND 28W700 PURNELL ROAD

WHEREAS, there has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of West Chicago, DuPage
County, Illinois, a Petition under oath requesting that the property described on the Plat of
Annexation Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof be annexed to the City; and,

WHEREAS, said Petition was presented to the City on or about ;
pursuant to the provisions of 65 ILCS 5/7-1-89, as amended; and,

WHEREAS, said Petition was included as Exhibit “C” of the pre-annexation agreement
approved by Resolution No. by the City Council on ; and,

WHEREAS, said Petition was signed at that time by the owner of record of the property
heretofore legally described on Exhibit “A” and no electors reside upon the premises; and,

WHEREAS, said property is not within the corporate limits of any municipality and
portions thereof are contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of West Chicago; and,

WHEREAS, the statutes of the State of Illinois provide that upon the filing of such a
Petition, the corporate authorities of the City of West Chicago may pass an ordinance annexing said
territory to the City, if said ordinance is passed by a majority of the Corporate Authorities; and,

WHEREAS, all notices required by law were provided for this annexation request on
; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of West
Chicago, in regular session assembled:

Section 1. The subject territory legally described in Exhibit “A” being indicated on
the Plat of Annexation to the City of West Chicago, which is appended to and made part of this
ordinance, is hereby annexed to the City of West Chicago, County of DuPage, and State of
Illinois.

Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to record with the DuPage County
Recorder and to file with the DuPage County Clerk a certified copy of this ordinance, together
with the Plat of Annexation, appended to this Ordinance.

Section 3. That the City Clerk shall and is hereby authorized to file with the Executive
Director of the DuPage County Board of Election Commissioners a certified copy of this
Ordinance together with an accurate map of the territory annexed appended thereto.

Ordinance No. XX-0-XXXX
Page 1 of 3



EXHIBIT CCD‘!‘!

Section 4. All ordinances and resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

Section 5. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage,
approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law.

PASSED this _ day of ,
Alderman Beifuss o Alderman Chassee
Alderman Sheehan o Alderman Brown o
Alderman Hallett 7 Alderman Ferguson
Alderman Birch-Ferguson Alderman Dimas -
Alderman Swiatek . Alderman Garling
Alderman Stout . Alderman Short -
Alderman Ligino-Kubinksi Alderman Jakabesin
APPROVED as to form:

City Attorney

APPROVED this day of

Mayor, Ruben Pineda

ATTEST:

City Clerk, Nancy M. Smith

PUBLISHED:

Ordinance No. XX-O-XXXX
Page 2 of 3



EXHIBIT “D”

EXHIBIT “A”

(Attach the Plat of Annexation here)

Ordinance No. XX-0-XXXX
Page 3 of 3



DRAFT DOCUMENT

Exhibit “E”
Preliminary Plat of Subdivision



|
|

T -
———
Wi v e

BINCHMARKS

i
g

ik 1 e

P g ¥ Pl Ss y3eaEn L 4 B
AL RIS
[

1011 0
e

Exhibit "E"

3a wTe ACRLG

b
= 174 DAsmALY (ned 8 Fonetl| D

moTER

¢ AN B R B e e o D s
BED LR BT B A ) Pl Fm, (A

§ e, e, e Gy iy )
R ]
L ]

T S LML MR AL RS B TR

Sty -+t

8 8L et e L
PRty

¥ G w5ty s o g -
b -h;'-uﬂm T e T
g

AR

FaEL VR UHITL S e
.. -um.u e

PN ey s

FoR

DUPAGE COUNTY, 1IL

51 o L e TERY 1 i 1), 19
[t el el LB R BT bl oy i

"'3.
u.- . "‘|.“'
wad

PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT AND P.U.D.

TRILLIUM FARM

ine e i

AT Or a3

-

PROJECT
LOCATION

5 e
LT %

i

o a1 wMan
aeax taan

pee 0 B m

LOCATION MAP

" g o St TR
L ﬂ!rl' Y
- L

.

s
s Ehim
21

B
[ =t

[ITI AT
: e
H

Lo7 BimENA LaNE
LIRE & LARG ARE
R B 17 W At 3'CauLd vany i1

L
BUBDIVINIOH PLATTING,

My

f 3

L,
FULTE HOME CCMPANY, LLC
1900 E. GOLF ROAD, SUITE 100
SCHAUMBUAG, . 80173
(847) 216-5400

wly

i

ok

T

Gunar ¢
iniar

Y

LS e e hes A ae

Do Cme
e T

£

W

SR
CEMCON, Ltd.

vE

oo fos mamt

o v

.




o

e Lo )

=3

S s
[-1 ‘" LSl

ni .

s
Tan! Ry et S
v chgaen 1] 4

e i w2
A i

s
e o 1 Pa WD O

D R 01 e e B B

AT FR

e
camte o e

APHRGR B DA OTY CRALL B B GTY O VY OREAA AN GUAIT LR
L T L J—

AE o s

"
LTy G

VI s

Ehmin o e

N g e e
TRt Tadk PALARAT 16 smed
e 1

s
-

£
T

—_——rE—

o [T
fe= A
D

SUFLEYTHI CUELICALL

I
AT O Gy

TR P AT Ban s PEIC 4, fLAUE A% AURCT MTSIMO LHAD WE AR, mad RAL D BE
FALCENL i s reRTAT

Pt pan

U BN W il S R 8 SR, U
THY I Gt F wslAT, AD, S

FLAT

Ber .

o uRm)
Bt o e e}

COATNCATL OF WMEALTW DEPARTWENT
N o ey
caRt ¥ e
g T Bar o i e

VAT siman

"
comte of Dumad]

s St s
o T AT T s 0, ok Y e} 1o PR
EA G e BT AR Ok o A e e T Lo
P QAT O R BFAd COMTY LRSS F O AL MG
AL

Rl 6 i, il AT L T e L

b
ile F B

UFAZE COUNTY Q%6 CENIICATE
AR
gom & mrm)

imirt B9

N e SR

aim o pei

NSUET MITY & S

TR

Cufadl Llunle SlLUnoos Llnoatl
e e e
ARl @ b Sy

(i1 Y
PULTE HOME COMPANY, LLE
1900 £, GOUF ROAD, SUTE 300
SCHAUMBURG, IL 60173
(B47) 230-%400

s
CEMCON, Lid,

sty Loy,
O 1

Fam

S




DRAFT DOCUMENT

Exhibit “F”
Preliminary Engineering Plan



PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING PLAN 4

TRILLIUM FARM

1 DUPAGE COUNTY, IL

NG & FaRT OF DL MORTHMEST 1/ OF SICRON 71, TOWNDNS 39 MOATH
FAICE B, [AST OF THE TAD PRWOPAL MORDUN, 8 DUPAGL COUMTY, LBV

—

]
o o e 6

[El

rm—m e

A e | |

PROJECT
LOCATION

a8 wraarasss wn oes

i
o 5 m
Leve 3e -

i et e

oy wweun

HOILS

ORI S I DD L) W ARC YT
L oy U A

4, UL VY P et ) Bl S AT D
e ity Cheh
(I S o i g ey

e at e e

AL T S S A e

RENMA IR G S

L S T G G TS Y 4 GO
B REALY WD e

LEGEND

iE

sarss sasim
ey

ey

alers (LT Bax
mEaELL

mus maeTiem

EYEA S
BANITART SEWER
AT

ALy & wox

WATER VALTE IN VARLY
Fing wvsaant

corlff L1meoeef

wTERRLEw BRNTE
FResARLE ENTATIARGRIFISE FITE

rm—suies gvsTEm wies sw wisss rem
BARI TART BABSSLE |BAW1IFIBATISS

T by heri e

Ee——uiEe gTSTES iww ew siass Fem
TILTE PASLT IBASTIFISaTIER

OO0 Byt

e g e ety e e AP
SR Ry
FCHCATGY Ak COMTALT CCOLMENTL

BARD TR P BT O war, AB. T

T Tt ou womach
ATV ({0 i LATAL s LTI
T A I S Pn e M BT 1 8 A1 Wl

TYPICAL PAVEMENT SECTION
s

o LL|
1900 E. GOLF , SUITE 300
SCHAUMBURG, IL. 60173
(B47) 230-5400

TERTSRIR Br
CEMCON, Ltd.
Ean g
I A

O RA /R N PR R U
T T G210 8 M WLIN

s i e

G




DRAFT DOCUMENT

Exhibit “G”
Performance Surety



CITY OF WEST CHICAGO

CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

ITEM TITLE:
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: 1. &

Public Utility Easement Agreement
Pulte Home Company, LLC FILE NUMBER:
29W066 and 29W080 Gary's Mill Road

COMMITTEE AGENDA DATE:

Resolution No. 20-R-0029
COUNCIL AGENDA DATE: June 15, 2020

STAFF REVIEW: Tom Dabareiner, AICP SIGNATURE "Xz}ﬁ\“

APPROVED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Michael Guttman SIGNATURE

ITEM SUMMARY:

As part of the Trillium Farm residential development on Purnell Road, Pulte Home Company, LLC has
drafted public utility easement agreements to allow the extension of City sewer and water through pri-
vate properties located at 29W066 Gary's Mill Road and 29W080 Gary's Mill Road. The same indi-
vidual owns both of these properties. The property owner has agreed to the proposed public utility
easement through these properties and signed agreements stating such.

As the grantee of these public utility easements, the City is a signatory to the agreements. Staff has
reviewed the agreements and found them to be acceptable.

ACTION PROPOSED:

Consideration of the public utility easement agreements for 20W066 Gary's Mill Road and 29W080
Gary’s Mill Road.

Attachments:
Resolution
Public Utility Easement Agreements




RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-0029
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A PUBLIC
UTILITY EASEMENT AGREEMENT FOR
29W066 GARY’S MILL ROAD AND 29W080 GARY’S MILL ROAD
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Chicago, in
regular session assembled, that the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign an agreement
for a public utility easement for 29W066 Gary’s Mill Road and 29W080 Gary’s Mill

Road according to the agreements as attached hereto and incorporated herein as

Exhibit “A”.

APPROVED this day of , 2020.

AYES:

NAYES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Ruben Pineda, Mayor

ATTEST:

Nancy M. Smith, City Clerk



Prepared by & Mail To:
Russell G, Whitaker I11
127 Aurora Avenue
Naperville, Illinois 60540

UTILITY EASEMENT AGREEMENT

This Utility Easement Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this day of
» 2020, by Carol Alderson Trust dated August 26, 2014 (“Owner™); Pulte
Home Company, LLC, (“Pulte”); and the City of West Chicago, a municipal corporation

(the “City™).
WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Owner owns property legally described in Exhibit “A” attached
hereto and made a part hereof (“Owner Parcel™); and

WHEREAS, the Owner Parcel extends to the centerline of Gary’s Mill Road, a
public roadway under the jurisdiction of the Illinois Department of Transportation; and

WHEREAS, Pulte is the contract purchaser of certain property located south of
the Owner Parcel which Pulte seeks to develop as a residential subdivision to be known

as “Trillium Farm;” and

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to provide potable water and sanitary sewer
services to facilitate the development of Trillium Farm; and

WHEREAS, Pulte seeks the right to extend water main, sanitary sewer main and
other private utility services (i.e. natural gas, cable, electric, telephone) across a portion
of the Owner Parcel to facilitate such utility installations as may be necessary and
appropriate to service Trillium Farm (the “Utility Improvements™); and

WHEREAS, on the express conditions set forth herein, the Owner desires to
grant a public utility easement over that portion of the Owner Parcel as more specifically
described below to facilitate the installation of the Utility Improvements.



NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and covenants
herein contained and other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, it is hereby agreed as follows:

ARTICLE 1
GRANT OF EASEMENT

148 Utility Easement. A public utility easement (“Utility Easement”) is
hereby granted to Pulte, the City of West Chicago, Illinois, and to those utility companies
operating under franchise from the City of West Chicago, including but not limited to
Ameritech, Nicor Gas Company, Commonwealth Edison, AT&T, their successors and
assigns (collectively the “Grantees™), over that portion of the Owner Parcel depicted on
Exhibit B (identified as as Alderson Trust) and legally described on Exhibit C as the
Utility Easement Area (“Utility Easement Area”). Grantees shall have the perpetual
right, privilege and authority to construct, reconstruct, repair, inspect, maintain and
operate various utility collection and distribution systems, and including sanitary sewers
and watermains together with any and all necessary manholes, catch basins, connections,
appliances, valves, valve vaults, fire hydrants and other structures and appurtenances as
may be deemed necessary by the City of West Chicago, over, upon, along, under and
through said indicated Utility Easement Area, together with the right of access across the
Owner Parcel for necessary personnel and equipment to do any of the above work. The
Utility Easement is subject to the express condition that all utility lines be located
underground and that the surface of the Utility Easement Area be used only if necessary
for apprutenances such as fire hydrants, manholes or catch basins. The right is also
granted to cut, trim or remove and trees, shrubs or other plants in the Utility Easement
Area that interfere with the operation of the improvements installed therein. Said Utility
Easement Area may be used for gardens, shrubs, landscaping and other purposes that do
not then or later interfere with the rights granted herein.

ARTICLE I1
PAYMENT

2.1  Payment. Pulte shall pay to Owner the sum of One Thousand Five
Hundred and no/100 Dollars ($1,500.00) in consideration of this Agreement (the
“Payment”). Pulte shall make the Payment to Owner not later than five (5) days after the
date that the Owner and the City have executed this Agreement and delivered an
electronic copy thereof to Pulte. If Pulte fails to timely deliver the Payment, Owner’s
counsel may withhold delivery of the original signature page and terminate the agreement
by written notice to Pulte. The recordation of this Agreement shall evidence satisfaction
of the Payment obligation.

ARTICLE 111
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES & COVENANTS

3.1  City. The City represents, warrants and covenants to Owner and Pulte as
follows:



3.1.1 Authority.  City has the authority and power to enter into this
Agreement and to consummate the transaction provided for herein. This Agreement and
all other documents executed and delivered by City constitute legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of City, and there are no claims or defenses, personal or
otherwise, or offsets whatsoever to the enforceability or validity of this Agreement. The
person executing this Agreement on behalf of City has been duly authorized to do so.

3.1.2. No Forcible Annexation. The City shall not forcibly annex,
pursuant to any authority granted to it under the Illinois Municipal Code, the Owner
Parcel to the City of West Chicago. The Owner Parcel may not be annexed to the City of
West Chicago without the written consent of the owner of the Owner Parcel.

3.1.3. Waiver of Recapture. The City shall not collect or enforce
any recapture on behalf of Pulte, the City or any other entity with respect to roadway
improvements or utility extensions constructed across the frontage of the Owner Parcel.

3.1.4 Utility Connections. Owner has no obligation to connect to
utilities that Pulte may construct across the frontage of the Owner Parcel. In the event
that Owner desires to connect to any City owned and operated utilities located within the
Utility Easement Area, the City shall permit said connection on the condition that the
Owner Parcel is voluntarily annexed to the City. In the event that Owner elects to
voluntarily annex the Owner Parcel and connect to West Chicago utilities, the City shall
waive any annexation fee and any sanitary sewer and water tap-on fees for the Owner

Parcel.

3.2 Owner. The Owner represents, warrants and covenants to the City
and Pulte as follows:

3.2.1 Authority. Owner has the authority and power to enter into this
Agreement and to consummate the transaction provided for herein. This Agreement and
all other documents executed and delivered by Owner constitute legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of Owner, and there are no claims or defenses, personal or
otherwise, or offsets whatsoever to the enforceability or validity of this Agreement. The
person executing this Agreement on behalf of Owner has been duly authorized to do so.

3.3  Pulte. Pulte represents, warrants and covenants to Owner and the City as
follows:

3.3.1. Authority. Pulte has the authority and power to enter into this
Agreement and to consummate the transaction provided for herein. This Agreement and
all other documents executed and delivered by Pulte constitute legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of Pulte, and there are no claims or defenses, personal or
otherwise, or offsets whatsoever to the enforceability or validity of this Agreement. The
person executing this Agreement on behalf of Pulte has been duly authorized to do so.

3.3.2. Waiver of Recapture. Pulte shall not record any recapture against
the Owner Parcel for the cost of the Utility Improvements or for any roadway
improvements that may be constructed by Pulte. Pulte waives any right it may have to



recapture costs for the installation of the Utility Improvements installed by Pulte across
the frontage of the Owner Parcel.

ARTICLE 4
CONSTRUCTION; MAINTENANCE

4.1  No Obligation to Construct. The Owner, Pulte and the City hereby
acknowledge and agree that this Agreement provides Pulte and the City the right to
construct the Utility Improvements within the Utility Easement Area, but creates no
affirmative obligation to construct any Utility Improvements within the Utility Easement

Area.

4.2  Inmitial Construction. Following Pulte’s acquisition of Trillium
Farm, the initial construction of the water main and sanitary sewer main shall be
performed by Pulte, its successors and assigns, and all work, labor, services, equipment,
tools, and materials to be performed, furnished, or used directly or indirectly in, or in
connection with said construction shall be at the sole cost and expense of Pulte. Upon
commencement of construction, Pulte shall diligently proceed toward completion thereof.
Owner acknowledges and agrees that Pulte will not construct any physical connection of
the water main, the sanitary sewer main or any other Utility Improvements to any
improvements located on the Owner Parcel. Pulte shall cause the water main and
sanitary sewer main improvements to be completed consistent with such final
engineering plans as may be approved by the City. Construction of the water main and
the sanitary sewer main improvements shall be deemed completed and acceptable to the
Owner upon review, inspection, and approval of said improvements by the City engineer.

4.3  Maintenance of Improvement. From and after the date that the water
main and sanitary sewer main improvements are completed, Pulte shall be solely
responsible for the operation, maintenance, repair, and replacement thereof (the
“Maintenance Obligation™) through and until such time as the City accepts the ownership
of the water main and the sanitary sewer main improvements. The City shall accept
ownership of the water amin and the sanitary sewer main improvements consistent with
the provisions of the City’s municipal code and shall thereafter be solely and exclusively
responsible for the Maintenance Obligation. Owner hereby acknowledges and agrees that
the City will accept ownership of the water main and the sanitary sewer main and will
assume the Maintenance Obligation from Pulte, and, thereafter, the Owner shall look
solely to the City for satisfaction of the obligations set forth in this Agreement.

44  Landscape Enhancement. At Owner’s election, Pulte shall either: i) pay
to Owner the sum of two thousand seven hundred dollars ($2,700) for the installation of

landscape improvements on the Owner Parcel, which landscape improvements shall be
completed by Owner at Owner’s cost and discretion; or ii) install up to six (6) trees across
the frontage of the Owner Parcel and along the driveway of the Owner Parcel, which
trees shall be selected and located by Pulte’s landscape architect subject to the consent of
Owner. In the event the Owner elects to make the landscape improvements itself, Pulte
shall make the landscape improvement payment to Owner not later than five (5) days
after the date that the Owner and the City have executed this Agreement and delivered an



electronic copy thereof to Pulte. In the event that Owner elects to have the trees installed
by Pulte, the trees shall be installed by Pulte within sixty (60) days of the date that the
construction of the Utility Improvements are commenced subject to cooperation of the
Owner. It is the intent of the parties that the landscape enhancement provides both a
visual buffer and a physical barrier between the home located on the Owner Parcel and

traffic on Gary’s Mill Road.

4.5  Restoration Obligation. During and following any work performed
within the Utility Easement Area, the party performing said work shall make surface
restorations, including but not limited to the following: maintain the area in a generally
clean and workmanlike condition, backfill any trench, restore concrete and asphalt
surfaces, restore topsoil and seed, replace any landscaping, remove excess debris, and
return property to the same or better condition. No work within the Utility Easement
Area shall modify the grade or inhibit the stormwater drainage within the Utility
Easement Area unless such drainage is placed into a piped underground drainage system.
All of said restoration shall be completed in accordance with City standards and shall be

subject to City approval.

ARTICLE 5
MISCELLANEOUS

5.1  Compliance; Permits. For purposes of initial construction of the water
main and sanitary sewer improvements, Pulte shall be responsible for compliance with
and any and all costs associated with the standard inspection and fees required under any
applicable county and/or municipal laws, rules, codes or ordinances for the construction,
installation, reconstruction, repair, removal, replacement, inspection, maintenance, and
operation of the improvements. Following acceptance of the improvements by the City,
the City shall thereafter be responsible for compliance with and any and all costs
associated with the standard inspection and fees required under any applicable county
and/or municipal laws, rules, codes or ordinances for the construction, installation,
reconstruction, repair, removal, replacement, inspection, maintenance, and operation of

the improvements

5.2 Insurance. Pulte shall maintain a commercial general liability insurance
policy with an insurance company licensed to do business in the State of Illinois with a
minimum coverage amount of not less than $1,000,000.00 combined single limit from the
date that construction within the Easement Area commences through the date that the

improvements are completed.

5.3  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original and together shall constitute one and the same

agreement.

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



OWNER:

Carol Alderson Trust dated August 26, 2014

By EW’Q%M, o Trwodel
Carol Alderson, as Trustee

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)SS.

COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that Carol Alderson, personally known to me to be the Trustee of
Carol Alderson Trust dated August 26, 2014 and personally known to me to be the same
person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this
day in person and acknowledged that he signed and delivered this instrument as his free
and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

Given unddy my hand and official seal, this 2-3%a day of _ /M AY , 2020.
PUBLIC /




PULTE HOME COMPANY LLC,
a Michigan limited liability company

By:

Its:

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County in the State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that , personally known to me to be a

of Pulte Home Company LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, and
whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in

person and severally acknowledged that as such . he/she signed, sealed
and delivered the said instrument in writing as said of said company
and pursuant to authority given by the of said company, as a free and
voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of said , for
the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and seal, this day of , 2020.

NOTARY PUBLIC



CITY OF WEST CHICAGO,
a municipal corporation

By:

Its:

ATTEST:

By:

Its:




EXHIBIT A
OWNER PARCEL LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LOT 1 IN WEST WIND ACRES PLAT OF SURVEY NO. 1, IN THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AUGUST
28, 1952 AS DOCUMENT 660624, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS,

PIN: 04-15-405-006

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 29W066 GARY’S MILL ROAD, WEST CHICAGO, IL
60185



EXHIBIT B
UTILITY EASEMENT AREA DEPICTION

10



R o = T Ot = Ol
CEUEOY DM BOM A20-(d TR MOUTLIAGY
=== T0M S S x® TU W G0 v

i Iius T T iTidte oM U
b ]

SSLETHN O v QOLT LI O0S Hd

e S v @ —
% . QILVYNC30 ATIVWHOA
ﬁu_.-.._” ZGUEMU LON 9NINZJO AvMavoy

00FS-0FT (LvE)

TLI03 T "DUNBANVHIS
00€ 3LINS ‘0Y0¥ 4109 ‘3 0061
771 ANVROD 3N0H 3LNd
e

Suid AHLNI 85 (2)

Lid SNAEIIY ZZXS
Q3LWIN030 ATIWINEOS

QILYI03T ATIVIN0S
LON ONIN3HD AYMOYOYH

LON ONINZJO AWMOVOM

. .. = ¥ —
H h\.‘l 3 g o el : - -
K —— o Byl gl AT — LA e R ._.._=.._ m.\rw_\iﬂ
-y Moy =) > 2 LS N L w, e e L e e B AT
\@.\\_ - qaLy2Ke3g, ﬂ \ Pakii b s e D e 2
m']\l ﬂ L e ey - = ¥ =
w 1 .b‘ 4T} r

] Slid AHIN3 8X5 (2)

Eouvd LSNYEL

Lid ONAGIIY ZZXS

%
VA4V LN3IW3Isv3I ALITILN H0O NOILlOId3a
8 LIgIHX3




EXHIBIT C
UTILITY EASEMNET LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE SOUTH 45 FEET OF LOT 1 IN WEST WIND ACRES PLAT OF SURVEY NO. 1, IN
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED AUGUST 28, 1952 AS DOCUMENT 660624, IN DUPAGE COUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

PART OF PIN: 04-15-405-006

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 29W066 GARY’S MILL ROAD, WEST CHICAGO, IL
60185

11



Prepared by & Mail To:
Russell G. Whitaker III
127 Aurora Avenue
Naperville, Illinois 60540

UTILITY EASEMENT AGREEMENT

This Utility Easement Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this day of
» 2020, by Carol Alderson Trust dated August 26, 2014 (“Owner”); Pulte
Home Company, LLC, (“Pulte”); and the City of West Chicago, a municipal corporation

(the “City”).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Owner owns property legally described in Exhibit “A” attached
hereto and made a part hereof (“Owner Parcel”); and

WHEREAS, the Owner Parcel extends to the centerline of Gary’s Mill Road, a
public roadway under the jurisdiction of the Illinois Department of Transportation; and

WHEREAS, Pulte is the contract purchaser of certain property located south of
the Owner Parcel which Pulte seeks to develop as a residential subdivision to be known

as “Trillium Farm;” and

WHEREAS, the City has agreed to provide potable water and sanitary sewer
services to facilitate the development of Trillium Farm; and

WHEREAS, Pulte seeks the right to extend water main, sanitary sewer main and
other private utility services (i.e. natural gas, cable, electric, telephone) across a portion
of the Owner Parcel to facilitate such utility installations as may be necessary and
appropriate to service Trillium Farm (the “Utility Improvements”); and

WHEREAS, on the express conditions set forth herein, the Owner desires to
grant a public utility easement over that portion of the Owner Parcel as more specifically
described below to facilitate the installation of the Utility Improvements.



NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the promises and covenants
herein contained and other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of

which are hereby acknowledged, it is hereby agreed as follows:

ARTICLE 1
GRANT OF EASEMENT

1.1 Utility Easement. A public utility easement (“Utility Easement”) is
hereby granted to Pulte, the City of West Chicago, Illinois, and to those utility companies
operating under franchise from the City of West Chicago, including but not limited to
Ameritech, Nicor Gas Company, Commonwealth Edison, AT&T, their successors and
assigns (collectively the “Grantees”), over that portion of the Owner Parcel depicted on
Exhibit B (identified as Alderson) and depicted on Exhibit C as the Utility Easement
Area (“Utility Easement Area”). Grantees shall have the perpetual right, privilege and
authority to construct, reconstruct, repair, inspect, maintain and operate various utility
collection and distribution systems, and including sanitary sewers and watermains
together with any and all necessary manholes, catch basins, connections, appliances,
valves, valve vaults, fire hydrants and other structures and appurtenances as may be
deemed necessary by the City of West Chicago, over, upon, along, under and through
said indicated Utility Easement Area, together with the right of access across the Owner
Parcel for necessary personnel and equipment to do any of the above work. The Utility
Easement is subject to the express condition that all utility lines be located underground
and that the surface of the Utility Easement Area be used only if necessary for
apprutenances such as fire hydrants, manholes or catch basins. The right is also granted
to cut, trim or remove and trees, shrubs or other plants in the Utility Easement Area that
interfere with the operation of the improvements installed therein. Said Utility Easement
Area may be used for gardens, shrubs, landscaping and other purposes that do not then or
later interfere with the rights granted herein.

ARTICLE 11
PAYMENT

2.1  Payment. Pulte shall pay to Owner the sum of Seven Thousand Five
Hundred and and no/100 Dollars ($7,500.00) in consideration of this Agreement (the
“Payment”). Pulte shall make the Payment to Owner not later than five (5) days after the
date that the Owner and the City have executed this Agreement and delivered an
electronic copy thereof to Pulte. If Pulte fails to timely deliver the Payment, Owner’s
counsel may withhold delivery of the original signature page and terminate the agreement
by written notice to Pulte. The recordation of this Agreement shall evidence satisfaction
of the Payment obligation.

ARTICLE III
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES & COVENANTS

3.1  City. The City represents, warrants and covenants to Owner and Pulte as
follows:



3.1.1 Authority. City has the authority and power to enter into this
Agreement and to consummate the transaction provided for herein. This Agreement and
all other documents executed and delivered by City constitute legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of City, and there are no claims or defenses, personal or
otherwise, or offsets whatsoever to the enforceability or validity of this Agreement. The
person executing this Agreement on behalf of City has been duly authorized to do so.

3.1.2. No Forcible Annexation. The City shall not forcibly annex,
pursuant to any authority granted to it under the Illinois Municipal Code, the Owner
Parcel to the City of West Chicago. The Owner Parcel may not be annexed to the City of
West Chicago without the written consent of the owner of the Owner Parcel.

3.1.3. Waiver of Recapture. The City shall not collect or enforce
any recapture on behalf of Pulte, the City or any other entity with respect to roadway
improvements or utility extensions constructed across the frontage of the Owner Parcel.

3.1.4 Utility Connections. Owner has no obligation to connect to
utilities that Pulte may construct across the frontage of the Owner Parcel. In the event
that Owner desires to connect to any City owned and operated utilities located within the
Utility Easement Area, the City shall permit said connection on the condition that the
Owner Parcel is voluntarily annexed to the City. In the event that Owner elects to
voluntarily annex the Owner Parcel and connect to West Chicago utilities, the City shall
waive any annexation fee and any sanitary sewer and water tap-on fees for the Owner

Parcel.

3.2 Owner. The Owner represents, warrants and covenants to the City
and Pulte as follows:

3.2.1 Authority. Owner has the authority and power to enter into this
Agreement and to consummate the transaction provided for herein. This Agreement and
all other documents executed and delivered by Owner constitute legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of Owner, and there are no claims or defenses, personal or
otherwise, or offsets whatsoever to the enforceability or validity of this Agreement. The
person executing this Agreement on behalf of Owner has been duly authorized to do so.

3.3 Pulte. Pulte represents, warrants and covenants to Owner and the City as
follows:

3.3.1. Authority.  Pulte has the authority and power to enter into this
Agreement and to consummate the transaction provided for herein. This Agreement and
all other documents executed and delivered by Pulte constitute legal, valid, binding and
enforceable obligations of Pulte, and there are no claims or defenses, personal or
otherwise, or offsets whatsoever to the enforceability or validity of this Agreement. The
person executing this Agreement on behalf of Pulte has been duly authorized to do so.

3.3.2. Waiver of Recapture. Pulte shall not record any recapture against
the Owner Parcel for the cost of the Utility Improvements or for any roadway
improvements that may be constructed by Pulte. Pulte waives any right it may have to



recapture costs for the installation of the Utility Improvements installed by Pulte across
the frontage of the Owner Parcel.

ARTICLE 4
CONSTRUCTION; MAINTENANCE

4.1  No Obligation to Construct. The Owner, Pulte and the City hereby
acknowledge and agree that this Agreement provides Pulte and the City the right to
construct the Utility Improvements within the Utility Easement Area, but creates no
affirmative obligation to construct any Utility Improvements within the Utility Easement

Area.

4.2  Initial Construction. Following Pulte’s acquisition of Trillium
Farm, the initial construction of the water main and sanitary sewer main shall be
performed by Pulte, its successors and assigns, and all work, labor, services, equipment,
tools, and materials to be performed, furnished, or used directly or indirectly in, or in
connection with said construction shall be at the sole cost and expense of Pulte. Upon
commencement of construction, Pulte shall diligently proceed toward completion thereof,
Owner acknowledges and agrees that Pulte will not construct any physical connection of
the water main, the sanitary sewer main or any other Utility Improvements to any
improvements located on the Owner Parcel. Pulte shall cause the water main and
sanitary sewer main improvements to be completed consistent with such final
engineering plans as may be approved by the City. Construction of the water main and
the sanitary sewer main improvements shall be deemed completed and acceptable to the
Owner upon review, inspection, and approval of said improvements by the City engineer.

4.3 Maintenance of Improvement. From and after the date that the water

main and sanitary sewer main improvements are completed, Pulte shall be solely
responsible for the operation, maintenance, repair, and replacement thereof (the
“Maintenance Obligation™) through and until such time as the City accepts the ownership
of the water main and the sanitary sewer main improvements. The City shall accept
ownership of the water amin and the sanitary sewer main improvements consistent with
the provisions of the City’s municipal code and shall thereafter be solely and exclusively
responsible for the Maintenance Obligation. Owner hereby acknowledges and agrees that
the City will accept ownership of the water main and the sanitary sewer main and will
assume the Maintenance Obligation from Pulte, and, thereafter, the Owner shall look
solely to the City for satisfaction of the obligations set forth in this Agreement.

44  Restoration Obligation. During and following any work performed
within the Utility Easement Area, the party performing said work shall make surface
restorations, including but not limited to the following: maintain the area in a generally
clean and workmanlike condition, backfill any trench, restore concrete and asphalt
surfaces, restore topsoil and seed, replace any landscaping, remove excess debris, and
return property to the same or better condition. No work within the Utility Easement
Area shall modify the grade or inhibit the stormwater drainage within the Utility
Easement Area unless such drainage is placed into a piped underground drainage system.



All of said restoration shall be completed in accordance with City standards and shall be
subject to City approval.

ARTICLE 5
MISCELLANEOUS

5.1 Compliance; Permits. For purposes of initial construction of the water
main and sanitary sewer improvements, Pulte shall be responsible for compliance with
and any and all costs associated with the standard inspection and fees required under any
applicable county and/or municipal laws, rules, codes or ordinances for the construction,
installation, reconstruction, repair, removal, replacement, inspection, maintenance, and
operation of the improvements. Following acceptance of the improvements by the City,
the City shall thereafter be responsible for compliance with and any and all costs
associated with the standard inspection and fees required under any applicable county
and/or municipal laws, rules, codes or ordinances for the construction, installation,
reconstruction, repair, removal, replacement, inspection, maintenance, and operation of
the improvements

5.2 Insurance. Pulte shall maintain a commercial general liability insurance
policy with an insurance company licensed to do business in the State of Illinois with a
minimum coverage amount of not less than $1,000,000.00 combined single limit from the
date that construction within the Easement Area commences through the date that the
improvements are completed.

5.3  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original and together shall constitute one and the same
agreement.

[THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



OWNER:

Carol Alderson Trust dated August 26, 2014

Byidu‘n&ﬂmm% @0 Lecates
Carol Xlderson, as Trustee '

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)SS.
COUNTY OF DUPAGE )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that Carol Alderson, personally known to me to be the Trustee of
Carol Alderson Trust dated August 26, 2014 and personally known to me to be the same
person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this
day in person and acknowledged that he signed and delivered this instrument as his free
and voluntary act, for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

Given underqny hand and official seal, this_Z3Aa day of A A 4 , 2020.

OFFICIAL SEAL
ROY D. WINN
Notary Publie - State of lllinois
My Commigsish Expies 6/21/2021

, M
N Y PUBLIC /




PULTE HOME COMPANY LLC,
a Michigan limited liability company

By:

Its:

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.

COUNTY OF )

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County in the State aforesaid, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that , personally known to me to be a

of Pulte Home Company LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, and
whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day in

person and severally acknowledged that as such . he/she signed, sealed
and delivered the said instrument in writing as said of said company
and pursuant to authority given by the of said company, as a free and
voluntary act, and as the free and voluntary act of said , for
the uses and purposes therein set forth.

GIVEN under my hand and seal, this day of , 2020.

NOTARY PUBLIC



CITY OF WEST CHICAGO
a municipal corporation

By:

Its:

ATTEST:

By:

Its:




EXHIBIT A
OWNER PARCEL LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LOT 2 IN WEST WIND ACRES PLAT OF SURVEY NO. 1, IN THE SOUTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED AUGUST 28, 1952 AS DOCUMENT 660624, IN DUPAGE COUNTY,

ILLINOIS.
PIN: 04-15-405-005

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 29W080 GARY’S MILL ROAD, WEST CHICAGO, IL
60185



EXHIBIT B
UTILITY EASEMENT AREA DEPICTION



D © WM Ered Cwls ¢ agax

FEUTOT TOM SO E-S0-G0 TRV MOUTIARGO

el e T T AR e

BN a0 e TW SCiBee oM 350 R //
T ——

BSITTINCS o oI 19 0aa e 0.

TLIE-TOG0R et ey + %, /r
S i w0 e ooz (o
e ¥ E!Stl.l.nrllnn. ,

Q3LYI030 ATIVINE0A
LON SNIN3dD AVMOYOY

»»
/ %,
00¥S=-05Z (£¥8)
CL109 T 'ONSMNYHIS
GO 3LINS "avoy 4109 "3 006k
IT1 "ANYJMOD 3WOH 3LTNd /M»n,

Ty oA

S AMING xS (Z)

QALY 030 ATTVHHO0A
LON ONIN3JO AWMOVOY

=

] [ eawvaazdy|
K _\\L ,

T30V LSNHL

T3uvd NOSHITTY

VIHVY LANIWISVI ALITILIN HO

_
_,‘_ Jf
8 LIgIHX3

Aid INWEIDIE ZTXS

Q3LWII030 ATIVNNOS
LON ONINIJO AVMOVOY

NOIL1LOId3a

= e




EXHIBIT C
UTILITY EASEMENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THE NORTH 33 FEET OF THE SOUTH 45 FEET OF LOT 2 IN WEST WIND ACRES PLAT
OF SURVEY NO. 1, IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 39
NORTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AUGUST 28, 1952 AS DOCUMENT 660624, IN DUPAGE

COUNTY, ILLINOIS.
PART OF PIN: 04-15-405-005

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 29W080 GARY’S MILL ROAD, WEST CHICAGO, IL
60185

11



Bond No.

PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that

of

as Principal, and a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of and
authorized to transact business in the state of , as Surety,

are held and firmly bound unto

of as Obligee, in

the penal sum of

% ) for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be made, we

bind ourselves, our heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and

severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to construct or have constructed,

NOW, THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall well and
truly perform said work in accordance with said standards, then this obligation shall be void,

otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

Signed, sealed and dated this day of ;

Principal

Surety




